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T Y2k YahTieTd fHid Row’loc|gR

fafd RowRlocloR A IHAR TEHHI JH FHFAHTRT
odTesh @ffder 3% I Skl fvRgER
Frofier €3 oF aremur gwr e fofa e T
grEmT T e Sdhd T vl TS et
fafear == (Virtua Zoom Meeting) WTha s
UehIcT GHY0T JRTT HRTITaRE &% aT fagaenshl
gfaffagm Virtual ATeTmeTe 3URerd 9 STHehRIshT
JATNT AT FAT FRITT THUHT |

fafg  : Rous TR AT U T HTAER

TIE : FHFHIRT Hied wEed, feme,
FHISHIUST (THTHT FEWT T =Te FRHTeeTs
Meeting ID/ Password 3UeTse TS )

aa o faEe e e |

2. oAl  HHlde!  dhale  HESRT
STETEISIGI UM g HFIIhT 3T, 00 / 0]
T Tk UfdeeT I SAher W qTid 7 |

9.3 IRl 3. F.06c/006R T @l TNERT
YiqaeT dfedenl ITEATd, ATHT Al TeaTe
T T yare foawor qem d@eT ot
FgEE 9 T |

2.3 IRl IT.d.08%/0co @ AWT THEUT
THHT AT oramafeerer  ffaer  fawrie
ST orEr uREERT e T TR
grfefes e |

9.¥ UoHIA® HHEE WA WY SHISH
FOHIRT BTl IR YSfieRl &.%¢ wfasra
(T @fed) &1 et EHEEATS ATe ATE
feraor 7 wEaTe wiid T |

.2 AR TR FGHEMT dore ot
TehTTehT TTET IUHAUEE @S TR TavaedieT
W AT HEle T WU, SR
UAT HATAATY SRR IFIAR B ST
qUT @G T ST USRI |1 &l i
JMETIH T AT SeRd fafta=T ehgtee
Tl feent @t &P U9, R0€3 I THT
o\ (T) U TedTere: dfafaars Tirer
e T |

3.2 FHFHIRT Y foEdment AT G Se9T STUshT
Tafu=r et/ Sreadrer/ faremor deree @i ™
AT T FPHTEEehT JPTAT SHTHT T Hoelieteh
affaeTs AREER &M T |

3.} T GHiqeT SO TRReT STHehRT T

ST T |

2. HIMS 2R HI WEMNRI IVE B Ui
FHEH Tl HROT JUTA TLhNST STRT TR
TR T HIGUESSh! qUT UTeT TR |t
g T o faery uftferfasr wRoTer et
AT ARIWIEEEATs  Virtual  FTEIHETE
9T Juteerdient At gfdsr o Tgiy & |

. Virtual ATEIETE 9T WUSRT SRREHTEEATS
T EETHT IUREI W EXE O fag s8mr
T STHRRT TRISTDT | Iufeerd ToTqeh ST
o geaeqsl ffra fafde der s1ger
T THT /IS 8T Hoie g1 O |

3. Virtual ATEHETE 3TE SIRICET aT SRR
fraudierenr wfatfusesr gfer et men
Log-In AThd HAST Log-In Wushl f@= it
yomorent fafe et faew ufesr & arer
ot et Video Recording T & |
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fufes ID T Password &1 Tifom seaefienr
mail ID: info@kmc.edunp T THIY HUH
TR T T AfR SaeT MU SR
TWRESt | A fw TmT " et
ST ufe=r Verification TR 1D/ Password
IE YST IMEUH T UTfafersh swfgrgare
=T FHFAT ¢ faT ST ID T Password fa
U T T | @ @Alfe email address AT
HTERUT HTeh! UidaeT T8d U31ET © |
Virtual ATEIHSTE ATRAT H-ded Ted dTe]
g AT mEgMERed eeimr R faT
NS T afad a1 Froiehr SATirenTie
Email: info@kmc.edunp AT @roeh TR AW
fediec TRT g7 3130 & |

fafqd 0’ /0c/0% T @ Row6R /0% /04
T4 T8 FHFTeRT IR TR @RS & TS
| @19, U Wb Uaesl fataeenar fufa
Q0% /0c¢/0R TTd Ty A.fe.fg. HREr 91§
JH FHEORT I TG TSR AT e

o

7 Opl aiffes UiAdEST Q00T/©0Q

T STTUHT SERYHT HETTHISEETs I8 HTeoT
TTeRT TRTSTHET ATHT SREHT SR TS |
AIYIRT @RI e T oTie  faawor
FeReRr  gdt  fehdeET  ®RM &
Email 3THTHT 93T3H® T I8 HEQeRl I
T sroTenT website: www.kme.edu.np T
HTEROT T g Tafa s o e afer & |
TaEl feT IR @91 qE T ¥e
gUST TS Raqeheh! Tiatafer oo (sfe)
Froiehr oed HRTRMET gdl  TThITS
a1 fegas | Wl grereft 311 SaTes
TeremTT sHraHt U T sRraTenT et STgET
S |

YR {7 et 31 SR T
(o gfgaent afadTer FEfe) o g
TG 3T S |
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2. Harere Atafdent gfdeeT

. AT U, R0%3 FI HT 208 HITSHERT feawor
3. ST Wikl gfadaT

¥, fotr feafaerr faawor (ammer)

. TR 9T e faawor

% 1 fowga ST faaror

v, G gaTg faewer

¢. AT et ufEdent faaror

], IIYHTE
20, faTd g¢ Iuehr garTeHer fafaer faamor

22. Hed Afvglg faawor
gR. JATAT. Rowe/ R FH AEAYU TLATCHET
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2%, FHA SAMGMIRT JeHTcHS FEgiT
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dTeTeh Affdehl dhTe HRIGRT TEFENT T A1 Tidaad :

FIGHTS! HiSHT FelSTohl d&l aATeh HTERUT ST
T ST I HeTeish AiHTdeRT B Grqul arefigeen
qhaTe ST TvTead T @ aur fafedr s
HThd IUREIT WS ANTHT 9T fefg g avqul SRert
TRITTE T =T UgHTeealTs =T S&RTd T+
g |

forrer @t ot e Paferear farerm &= S wo
que A a¥ o fargAT Tent qer wawT fevewr
&7 | ud Afewhdd Folorerals UHATE TofaaTe
T STRIST TSI HEREE gTHier Ui @t & |
farra ard o sfe aerer faameft w@i die gen
FENAT TR STATAT TeTefur S[osh THT HETURI FHA
HIATS THHRIT T | BT T TR oo SR
TITHT T & STk 1T o i ForehaT ook fer
TG 9= Fiaw! gdd TS TEaT SETeTs ot
FIAT ST T FATEe AR 3 |

Afgahet shetsTeh! graut gatertes qur Y faamefieeent
TSIIIST WA TR I Sholslhl a8 €I
AN T HEe o) W e feded Yok
fruftor g o, ST amer MeRT SR T e
el g1 u4 T J|aTs Public Private Partnership T
ConceptnConcept & i Tas I~ T grHter fafr=
W B AThd T AThel Ui fafa=T wieprarer
et T SaftheedT Uerer Yeame W g qfehreTe
A T HT FEL Slepl AOEhT SRR TS
aeer | gEar favm aftfeafaenr aesg et
Tl Mg fafd RoueieRIze 3@ R0
AT HITE 22 H HRUT JC TR TR
ARSI { TRl GTTUHRI HRUETE I~ TTHT
FA T FRUcHeh qRIEITaae GEaTeTs STsy
T T SISYUAT SR THT @idg Wl & T I
TR ST HaT T TRRT STETATTHET G
T TEAHT GTE TNEhT & | Tl ST hic STaTATHT

qfT I G Geeen! AT gl frefataa
TEIGEATS SAHT TG HIHAT JTATS o Hrigeeh!
FET T YT T B

2. I SRl TREWE 3fae |

R, TY IR HEITS qT HeTershsqgeenl dar
iaHTaTe ARuRE & JvmT URaRE @
TaTeqT Ye 71¢ AW TR 4T WM T gfas
T HFTEFHT STETE T T SFHITSTHT
To Golohl IG HEAThRT 7Y T I |

3. goit ot faemeft qur siradmsIEeer oW
HEAT wfq J@13 HUehT HIAT T favam |

¥, TEmER e ST T o a|
HEATRT WeATS |

w. fafe=r omemr deres afafaeeen geeawRqor
e Tfafderes, doemeeR @em
JTUATUHT FHET ATTYF ST T AT
TeFeh! shrigEerdTen fafyd afturmeTe T deer
TR JRT HeAT |

TEAT  ATRAGR  fTEHEAET  GEes e
SATSe, o7 SifeTeh FTAhUEE ISITHT o, TR
[AThT TR T SRAEATS WUfhell UTa, SeeedT
gaar fraeataar SR gt wEfEE gieRT 2 |
a1 el IR HINTS 22 T TWTEehT Jig WE Rl
T 3T SHTSe STHH YU STEIHT Jef aTiae
AT 95 O T TH IR Tl fafer
FeBL / T HTRHETE AT FTehT STTATSHT T
QAT EHT o IR TR Hid axaoTeft
&l

T T AIEH g L T 8 Bhamenamaee d
SeedT ST wE frergEn e T faramr
JTIEX ETeoh! SR TS FTEg -
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Aol o @R AT HifTg 2% &Y AT T

ferer YA wweRT wEET B gedTs oTer ¥ I |

BT THHTAAAT T G¥hebehl U TE AT TieeTmshT

Y LT ST HaTs HexE U S |

2.2 A1 o fafu=r frmmert T fafr=
FRIFHGEH AAHT AT T SRR
Tfehet aTefTehT STRAT 33T TaaeeahT StIsRh
T Wi TE SFHeiSTHT U2k e Teur queh |

fae fa. 0.1, o, fa. /1.3, 20 g .St/ wm.u
% ¥ FeT T2 U gt dheT HURT B |

2.3 gl w9 & 4 DMMCh  &EwW
ofeFh TF R0 ABRAT & T SH T

Care - 2 fag,
DM Neonatology — 1, M.Ch Neurosurgery — 2,
M.Ch Urology -1, M.Ch Gastroenterology — 1,
DM Pulmunology -1, DM: Nephrology - 1 T&e
T T Hhel qUHT B

2.¥ IG Fololl A GAH TEQERT SifEeh

DM Perioperative Crtitical

FIAHIGE, TG T AT & HEhHT HRHHTE T
9.3 At fafeoeest woaRT  IH SFeloMT ,
T3S I HETeT T+ IR &bt FHIIhAEE
w.igfaeg a® oo g, fafewg aw o ,
wo fag, fammd whw @ vo = TR T ST T e
1. | MBBS 100
2. |BDS 50
3. B.Sc. Nursing 40
4. |BNS 40
5 |BPT 30
6. MD/MS 68
6. M. Sc. Nursing 4
7. | MDS 2
9. | DMM.Ch 7
10. MDS Pedodontics 1
1. MD Forensic Medicine 1
12. DM Pulmonary Critical Care & Sleep Medicine 1
13. DM Nephrology 1
14, MDS Oral Medicine & Radiology 1
15. BMLT 30
16. Bachelor in Midwifey 20
17. BMIT 30
18. B.Pharmacy 40
e.%  I| Afger awET fRfad ueauTed T afteee I SHAGEHT 3% F2T 9T dfe
TTeeh I TheiSiehl Toi=T favTTeseTe e HYIEE JHNH T YUH S |
quehT fafir=T uTfsrer shrishmee FEgER T () Fd sherster Journal of Kathmandu Medical College
T - TR 9ET FERITSTT T SATTEHT & |
(%) oot fafr= fameegrr o @@r w1 (9) I8 a9 sherorehr fafu=r favmmeear fafu=
afe fafr= wecaqut fawrrgs=T CME/Workshop TEayUl  fawagedT wefwq e et

g% HTe TR B |
(@) womr FRia  fogeheeer Ufeg qem

92 &A1 afes URidgeT 20T/ O

SN THT ATAH FRIHHEEh! HTeH
U B |



A s Te Ioot@ie drferdes feT s
e B :

T FHeISHT R Lo AMHG HUARITEATS
g ©HEHT 4 & Basic Critical Care Training
UG U |

T FHeISTHT HRN T Fehedl, LSS0,
goethT quT S FHERIEEHT ATHT
Basic & Advanced Life Support Training
et s yem T sl et
feguht © |
TH FHISHT HRRG TS FHARIEEHTATS
Continue Nursing Education Training 9T
TS TR & |
I FHeloMT HRAG S quT Afdg
FHATOEEHRTATS  Complementary feeding
practices Training J&T T TR |
TG TSt Breast feeding week celebration
T AT Breast Feeding Training wTfds
FUARIEEATS YQH Ta TR |
¢ fe¥ Effective Education Methodology
Workshop H®eTdT Jah HFI~T U & |
¢ T « feT Teacher's Training Program
HHAT Jaieh GHI~T HUH! & |
2 2T ¥ f&T Research & Publication Ethics
Workshop HWeTdT Jaeh HFI~T U & |
¢ 9T  f&T Assessment and Evaluation
Workshop H®eTdT Jaeh HFI~T U & |
2.% TG Felolel fad avee afed  feeer
Linnaeus  University, Linkoping  University,
University of Skovde, Gothenberg University,
JdT  Norwegian University of Science &
Technology, SIdTeRT  Kobe Universty <
Tohuku  University, Denmark  University
aar  University of New England, Australia
HT Collaboration T fafw=r oiferss e
FIEYEYAH FEHA T TR B | 8
Ig aoistel  University of West of England,
Bistrol(UWE), UK, Harvard T.H. Chan School of
Public Health, Harvard University, Boston, USA,

University of Texas Health, USA #T fafu=
ofeh  TAT AEIHYAR  BRIBT AT
HEehrIehT J[EETA T & | JERT TATET AT,
SR ST 3T=T QThT Higehel holstehT
forameffe® @@ a@ FelSMT Elective Course
T IR T B | BT FEdl aned o
formeffetsr weamm gig ws@er aur @
q fel JehaT aua qRETSH THRUERT S |

2.c AfEsh TF 032/ °T W.IT.fa.m@ @ 200
faefafe.ta a® wo foe, fo.uw.dr. afds
% ¥o g1 T U T d%eT B |

2. AfEsh TF 03 AR FTGHAT TEHT BLHH
tfefgr ar 2 ST faamefieras st fos
A E TR | F8@HT 9 MDS
Pedodontics T  Oral Medicine & Radiology
fevmmT  (Post Graduate) TIshH  TeTeiehT
SATHT TRty T U & |

2.20 Bachelors in Mid Wifery, BMLT / BMIT shTishwenT
i TEATSHT IR T SABART HHAT TRehl
3|

2.22 Pulmonlogy and Nephrology BT DM Tt shTishd
HATCART TATNT T 1ehd WS HRIHH & WTeh
3

2.9 HISUTS! avafaenedT Taigd FheisTas T
ETHT TSl <¥ET Mch. Plastic Surgeon 3edte
T afedl shelst g7 TTEhT Ui 89 SRR
TR =T |

2.23 YveA UMW a%  di-eer  fawaeeAr
MDS (Post Graduate) FTEISFH HeTelehT &ATHT
weliehd WE HEHA I WUH B |

2.2% gaATRIHT el Skill Lab @ms fafw=T ferement
USHUTSHRT ATHT EAUTdT T Sl GFa=T TR’
qipuT S | Y I ATAT R T
MR HINTS AT TAT STETATCTRT TATIAT
T e TR |

9.9% 3UIA U F=qUTd Ceramic Lab 3T TToHT
T He=Ter TR afhuenT © |

2.9% TO hoislel JUTT HLHNSE Autopsy HaT
dfedel Medicolegal &aT HaTe T ITgwaT
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2.Rv

2.%¢

2.2%

¥

TS T H%heT U & T AT TaT HAT THehT
AT =Mfe Trqul AT SFehen! & | HISHTST
ofeshet ol TEAT STTHA U T ECRRT
Ufgshel shetoT dTaeheh! Tieell Higehel ahelsT
I ghel WUhT B | AT HaT I[E 9T IwEd
g faomefieeas o druTeenT Wi
Afefgmen suaier FMeT arfemesr @it
ST 9 T J8el e Afefa fas=mr MD
FTIHY O § Heheh! |

Jg HoeEe  MIfAd TIET Peer Review
Indexed Journal of Kathmandu Medical College
(JKMC) UehTiaTd  WSTeahl ST TRISH
AT | HISHIST HiSHhe Fersl TRER gl
T SheTsT W] Torge 1 gareteh] aead
HIAT THHRT TS YISl AAThe 9|7
g News Letter “KMC Times” ufw faarfaa
FIUT FRTTSTT WS Tihl ETGHT Tehl S |
JH FHeloloh! ATehIcHahl STTHTAT ShetoTehT
foramefteears ererm uiq ahmfa ™ qer
FHEEeh! AT Io0 SIS fauTdeRT TNE&AT
ST MBBS, B.Sc Nursing @ BDS T 3t
foemefieEars ey FIRET/ e T
TTE QT FGH 7T FIATS e faguent
T | G STTETAT STTHIT HTH 7T g FIThee!
Hewew, dide qur 1= HHaREEars qi
T TR B |

79 a9 MBBS d% Ro 3 WHEHT <2 SHT
foemeffeeer stfam uftem feusmmr cc.¥3
yfasra ferameftes 3favt wusht &7 | B.ScNursing
T 2w 3ff WEet 30 5T fommefiee srf<m
UfeTET e WUhMT oo Widwra 3faut
T & | BDS FRHT T a7 THGHT %2
ST foramefiee etf-am wftermr awer wosmT
Ro yiawrq foameffeeer stfm ufter 3ot
T B | IGHT A1 MD/MS % R08% TFT
& %2 ST fafad aERr k2,22 wfawa T
MSc. Nursing T ¥ ST frafad dggert 2oo
wfaera faameffeser uftar 3favt Mer &9 |

&3 aiffcp feidigeT 206T/©R

TH Herotehl TeTeTuT STEATCTeRl TaTohl URRATS
GUR 7T TR IS T9G TE3q S 3egaet
afger statemT fafa=T gument wriee Tiusr © |

R.2

R.R

R.R

R.¥

R.K

R.%

BTHT TITequr STEqdTeTeh! 339 STTEN AThan
SHATEEATS AT JASHRT AT AdST-eh
fogrepr femeenr ufr oM.fr.Er Tar HaeH
qor ferrefieeaTs war T SaTeRT TUREET
R TRt AThT fawm fafmcsretas aud
Floor Duty Tr& shaTg fawar fegust & |
TSt getmT STemyts AfeTee @fe
T =R gt qeqol 3UER §aT WeH T
3% THUHT & |

TaTeqoT STEUATEHT ST ATITE T HEATRTS
T ST GUITHT STfecaelTs T T Hfefem,
fomTeeaT T TEEhT Ug ST TR daTes
HEST IS B |
W%WWWGIS%I?IM%QI*I
oy forrfiee o3 W B | EeSH
fovmr T areReEr fomer BT SRR
TeaTe%ehT AT Bilateral Pelvic Osteotomy and
Repair for Bladder Dytrophy ST&T shfa- SR
afT T He STIEATRT ST TR S |
feregor STEUdTEreRT HaT fotaR E URR Jig
ufd eI q=Re F@eRT amhT =fed Video

Laparoscope, Video Endoscopy, Gastroscope,
Cautery Machine, Holmium Laser, Anaesthesia
Machine, Ultrasound Machine, Dialysis Machine,
OT Table, OT Light, Bipolar Resectoscope,
Flexible Ureteroscope, Vessel Sealer Cautery,

Harmonic Scalpel 3Tl  S&arT  Hacaqol
SUHUTEERT @G T JaTes Jeagesd Ud
YR SIETHT O |

ofefem  fovmrRr  sf@T  adars  @Hq
qer qEimiofet B3t SARUsRr ® qer
afefam favmT & TEhaX ASh! THA HWK,
smyffeaRtor T faar ufs ™ & qeee T
AT g T ARTHT S |




R TR ufaEfeRr 170 cylinder wfd fa
Oxygen cdTeH T &7HdT HUshT 7T Oxygen Plant
SIS T HEEHT AT |

R.¢  Covid-19 Pandemic T ST TetHT “UTeT TTHT
SAHEIT qUT TR GeTereT Jevbiar T
Positive forrmigesrl 3w faammer fera
STEIATCTAT TR §T ATkl T I T
a1 T |

.} UESHr favmmmT ereamyfer JuTemT afedr
Ualfeeh AeT STEM TR =L FFai-e IT=meT
I TST T |

.20 FHoASRT HS @@ IR fedr T W
AfehTel ATe® T TS FIBRO SCAN T 2
g1 Flexible Nasopharyngro Laryngoscopy, ENT
qrafer AN YATURI ST ST USRI UwIT
TR 44T Afeee STe™ W #1998
R |

.22 gahle  ferd  oTUdAiees 25 SRR
ATgeTieh AT ST T feaegd e
U, (COVID-19 T HHHUT UT=Td ) &TeA 24
& gver ER T fafy=r afetr favmmee demes
TR |

R.2R T STEUATST qUT JRT Wi TRt
ATEHT T HEITHT SSTUHT & AUt g4 3THT
o 4T 2.¥3 T (343R.R0 & fyex) smmw
TAT AT ST AT GG TR S | 8T
s fEle @y Sifeusr T g uTiehEeht
ST AT TR HIAT T AT TS
ARG |

.23 gAMERIE  IATASE PCR Lab faemHeraT
TIHTROT T 24 & 50T Geme 8 W&o |

R.2% Forensic Medicine gamhlewT ufeall UH
NMC/KIST Medical College =T  MBBS
foramefte®tTs Autopsy Practical TRISTEeR |

.24 R 92T Mortuary machine WUsIET 4 Fer 9fr
ST 6 T Hed 2 JeT GAThISHT 9aTs ¥Id
T e freAmsusT |

R.2% Echo Van 3 32T Winger Van 1 T gSfehl I ¢
Tt @fg mE |

.20 R T Wiy @G T HTGHHT ST & |

R.%¢< Registration HT Digital queue system STSTH T3
HTATHT STTTHT S |

R.2% ¢ T | X-ray machine S T IAATSEHHT
I R UM T TSH T H Tl qUHT T
31t ER T 73t STem i Hete ST B |

.20 F4F Cath lab &I @THT PN Pant building #T
I ST T oM 9§ I3 B |

2.32 Kidney Transplant &1 &&T gam®& T AWM
I T TSI TR Behl |

.RR @ @7 favmmET Fever profile, Leptospira IgG/
IgM, K 39, Brucella Antigen, Scrub typhus, TPHA,
Cholinesterase level, HBSAG/ HIV/ HCV — CLIA,
Serum Magnesium level, ENA Screening test,
COVID Antigen test, COVID IgG/ IgM, Serum
Lipase, Urinary Sodium/ Potassium, Urine for
toxicology, H pylori Antibody, H pylori Antigen,
Serum Cortisol, Anti CCP, Anti ds- DNA, D- dimer,
IL-6 (Interleukin- 6), Procalcitonin, Serum Lactate,

PCR for COVID 19 SeaTéieR! dftetorar ufT 31&
TR @ |
R.]3 JUAS faummehr &=t T Endourology,

LaproscopicUrology, Urooncology, Reconstructive
Urology, Open Urology, Andrology, RIRS ST&dT
HATEE & THIRT 8 STTefeh yfafuge
(Prostate, Bipolar TURBT, Laser PCNL, BNI, OIU)
I JANTETE Retrograde Intrarenal & af 31%
U & |

.Y A WA g ged T
MiDas Hospital Management Software SIH
Upgrade Tt & &15T HeTe T4 WD &
T Ity o s13T oo 3TTie dewh! © |

.} ARl FATATE G geed e
QRT (Quick Response Team), VCC (Visitor
Counseling Cell), OPD token system &=TcA-HT
TR B |

R.R% BTeT PATHITET STEIdTer™T 200 JE ICU, ¥o J8
NICU T 20 I PICU, Emergency observation
ward o €, EmergencyICU 2o s TEndoscopy
suite HAT FFI TRY gare W GfRuent B |

R.R¢ TomTer Tfid S afetT famT expansion
3T SHUHT ¥ T Sreet Taraw o7 T &Tef 20 FeT
e TR G el | AT STRTYHIE
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B TS Afeshdl sholsl Ulscleh fafdes

yefteffenT RVG (Radio- Visio- Graphy) afee af
SIS UHT S | Radiology section AT CBCT T
BMD Machine @i T HTelT AT &ehl & |

R.R¢ 128 Slice CT Scan aT #fe @itg mi d=rear
TH D |
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C h artere d A ccountants Tel: 01-4440283, 4442603, Fax: 4422686
Email: support@skaca.com.np

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S OPINION
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
Kathmandu Medical College Public Limited

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kathmandu Medical College Public Limited
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred as the “Group”) which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at Ashad 32, 2079 (corresponding to July 16, 2022) and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity, the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards.

In our opinion, the financial statements of the company and the consolidated financial statements of
the group present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the company and the group
as at Ashad 32, 2079 (corresponding to July 16, 2022) and its financial performance, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flow for the
year then ended in accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
ICAN's Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statement in Nepal, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAN's Handbook of
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
the audit of the financial statements and include the most significant assessed risk of material
misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) identified, including those which had the greatest effect on
the overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the
engagement team. Except the matters provided in basis of opinion section, we have determined that
there are no key audit matters to communicate in this report.

Other Information

Management is responsible for other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon. The annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's

report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the atdit or otherwise appears to be materially
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misstated. If based on the work we will perform, we conclude that there will material misstatement of
the other information, we will require to report that fact appropriately.

Whe‘n we read the annual report, If we conclude that there Is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordgnce with the prevailing accounting practices, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to con!mue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the management either intends to liquidate the Group or
to cease operations, or has realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process
Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, butis not a guarantee
Fhat an audit conducted in accordance with the NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken

on the basis of these financial statements.

As a part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

rial misstatement of financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, international omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the company and its subsidiary's internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablenes
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, content of the _consolidaled financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

« Identify and assess the risks of mate

s of accounting
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Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the pI;nne_d
Scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have compiled with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our examination of the consolidated financial statements as aforesaid, we report that:

a.

b.

We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

The accounts and records of the company and its subsidiaries have been maintained as required
by law and practice in a manner to reflect the real affairs of the Group.

The consolidated statement of financial position, consolidated statement of financial performance
and the consolidated statement of cash flow dealt with by this report are in agreement with the
books of account of the Group.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the
Board of Directors, the representative or any employee of the company and its subsidiaries have
not acted contrary to the provision of law relating to accounts nor caused direct loss or damage to
the Group deliberately or acted in a manner that would jeopardized the interest and security of the
Group and the business of the Group appears to have been conducted satisfactorily.

Sl

Laba Kumar Khatri | FCA
Partner

Place: Kathmandu
Date: November 02, 2022

UDIN No.: 221116CA00739bSFNL
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Statement of Financial Position

For the year ended 32 Asar 2079 (NPR)
Group KMC
Particulars
Note Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous year
ASSETS
Non Current Assets
Property Plant & Equipments 4.3 3,649,226,658 2,587,098,230 2,331,995,958 1,973,831,210
Goodwill 4.1 23,547,430 23,547,430 - -
Investments 4.4 - - 354,012,197 204,012,197
Other Non Current Assets 4.5 32,115,019 4,010,199 32,115,019 4,010,199
Total Non Current Assets 3,704,889,106 2,614,655,858 2,718,123,174 2,181,853,605
Deferred Tax Assets - - - -
Current Assets
Short Term Investments 4.7 - - - -
Inventories 4.8 21,105,745 10,394,358 8,455,725 8,920,483
Trade Receivables 4.9 6,717,880 3,935,141 - -
Other Current Assets 4.10 256,321,346 267,907,829 179,651,883 158,866,493
Cash & Cash Equivalents 4.1 8,888,818 21,563,955 3,115,273 10,037,564
Current Tax Assets 4.15 52,352,712 49,197,600 41,414,667 39,559,743
Total Current Assets 345,386,501 352,998,882 232,637,548 217,384,282
Total Assets 4,050,275,607 2,967,654,740 2,950,760,722 2,399,237,888
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Trade & Other Payables 4.12 617,579,653 468,309,442 558,923,168 402,579,117
Short Term Borrowings 413 139,769,801 165,127,581 139,769,801 165,127,581
Other Current Liabilities 4.14 76,729,160 68,248,287 68,029,160 66,328,287
Current Tax Liabilities 4.15 - - - -
Total Current Liabilities 834,078,614 701,685,309 766,722,130 634,034,984
Non Current Liabilities
Long Term Borrowing & Debt 4.16 2,020,438,000 1,060,280,000 994,058,000 582,200,000
Deferred Tax Liabilities 4.6 68,795,495 54,033,173 64,755,907 56,377,425
Deferred Grant Liabilities 23,816,000 29,770,000 23,816,000 29,770,000
Long Term Provision - - - -
Other Non-Current Liabilities 417 396,050,146 420,900,447 396,050,146 422,710,884
Total Non Current Liabilities 2,509,099,641 1,564,983,620 1,478,680,053 1,091,058,309
Equity
Share Capital 4.18 600,955,300 600,955,300 600,955,300 600,955,300
Retained earning & other reserves 4.19 98,327,179 91,829,084 104,403,239 73,189,295
Non Controlling Interest (NCI) 4.1 7,814,873 8,201,427 - -
Total Equity and NCI 707,097,352 700,985,811 705,358,539 674,144,595
Total Equity & Liabilities 4,050,275,607 2,967,654,740 2,950,760,722 2,399,237,888

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Homa Devi Neupane
Executive Chairman

Mr. Vijay Kumar Pandey
Director

Mr. Sandip Guragain
Director
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Mr. Netra Bandhu Baniya
Director

Mr. Chudamani Bhandari
Director

Mrs. Soina Sharma
Director

CA. Laba Kumar Khatri
Partner
Sujan Kafle & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Date:
Place: Kathmandu



For the year ended 32 Asar 2079

) Group KMC
Particulars Note - -
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Revenue 4.21 919,678,236 1,044,020,790 897,587,740 1,009,833,101
Other Income 422 388,418,493 147,983,347 314,728,584 138,150,925
Total Income 1,308,096,729 | 1,192,004,137 | 1,212,316,325 | 1,147,984,026
Hospital Supplies Consumption 423 95,322,978 224,146,702 92,931,471 194,358,499
Personnel Expenses 4.24 520,824,482 594,549,513 520,824,482 588,475,640
Administrative Expenses 4.25 248,361,207 156,542,381 233,758,589 156,373,369
Depreciation and Amortization 4.26 131,882,360 101,464,004 129,309,384 100,119,431
Finance Costs 427 182,854,202 61,908,987 95,558,321 57,197,944
Impairment charge ( Reversal) of financial assets 1,877,229
measured at amortized cost
Total Expenses 1,181,122,459 | 1,138,611,587 | 1,072,382,246 | 1,096,524,883
Share of profit of Associates 4.1
Profit Before Tax 126,974,271 53,392,550 139,934,079 51,459,143
Income Tax Expense 43,560,730 13,451,363 39,330,128 12,721,534
Current Tax 428 22,529,925 7,547,597 16,585,778 7,547,597
Deferred Tax 428 21,030,805 5,903,767 22,744,349 5,173,937
Profit/(Loss) for the year from Continuous 83,413,541 39,941,187 100,603,951 38,737,609
Operation
Profit/(Loss) for the year from Discontinue Operation
( NFRS-5)
Profit for the Period 83,413,541 39,941,187 100,603,951 38,737,609
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Executive Chairman Director Partner
Sujan Kafle & Associates
. . Chartered Accountants
Director Director
Date:
Director Director Place: Kathmandu
Al aIffes UIdEeT 20T/ O R



For the year ended 32 Asar 2079

NPR

Particulars -
Current Year Previous Year

Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss 100,603,951 38737608.82

Opening Figures

Appropriations:

a. General reserve

b. Foreign exchange fluctuation fund

c. Capital redemption reserve

d. Corporate social responsibility fund

e. Employees' Gratuity Fund

f. Other
>Investment adjustment reserve
>Cash dividend
>Bonus Share issued
>Corportate Social Responsibility Fund
>Emoployee training fund
>Share issue expenes writeen off
>Others

Profit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment 100,603,951 38,737,609

Regulatory adjustment :

a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+)

b. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+)

c. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/reversal (+)
d. Short loan loss provision on Non Banking Assets (-)/resersal (+)
e. Deferred tax assets recognised (-)/ reversal (+)

f. Goodwill recognised (-)/ impairment of Goodwill (+)

g. Bargain purchase gain recognised (-)/resersal (+)

h. Acturial loss recognised (-)/reversal (+) (57,463,471)

i. Other (+/-) 8,097,386

Distributable profit or (loss) 51,237,866 38,737,609

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Executive Chairman Director Partner
Sujan Kafle & Associates

. . hartered A ntant
Director Director Chartered Accountants

Date:
Director Director Place: Kathmandu
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For the year ended 32 Asar 2079

Group KMC
Particulars Note - -
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Profit for the year 83413540.85 39,941,187 | 100603951.2 | 38,737,609
Other Comprehensive Income, Net of Income Tax
a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(Gains)/losses from investment in equity instruments
measured at fair value
Gains/(losses) on revaluation
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 57,463,471
Income tax relating to above items (14,365,868)
Net other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss
b) Iltems that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge
Exchange gains/(losses)(arising from translating financial
assets of foreign operation)
Income tax relating to above items
Reclassify to profit or loss
Net other comprehensive income that are or may be
reclassified to profit or loss
c) Share of other comprehensive income of
associate accounted as per equity method
Other Comprehensive Income for the year, Net of Income Tax
Total Comprehensive Income for the Period 83,413,541 39,941,187 | 57,506,348 | 38,737,609
Total Comprehensive Income attributable to:
Equity-Holders of the Company 83,413,541 39,941,187 57,506,348 | 38,737,609
Non-Controlling Interest
Total Comprehensive Income for the Period 83,413,541 39,941,187 57,506,348 | 38,737,609
Earnings per Share
Basic Earnings per Share 9.57 6.45
Diluted Earnings per Share 9.57 6.45
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Executive Chairman Director Partner
Sujan Kafle & Associates
. . Chartered Accountants
Director Director
Date:
Director Director Place: Kathmandu
Al aIffes UfdidgeT Q00T/©Q B



For the year ended 32 Asar 2079

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit/(Loss) as per Income Statement 126,974,271 53,392,550 139,934,079 51,459,143
Adjustment for Non-Cash and Non Operating Expenses:

Depreciation 131,882,360 101,464,004 129,309,384 100,119,431
Finance Income (2,718,667) (1,158,345) (284,800) (94,539)
Interest & financial charges 182,854,202 61,908,987 95,558,321 57,197,944
Transferred from deferred income (6,240,077) (251,922) (6,240,077) (251,922)
(Gain)/Loss on sale of fixed assets - (2,215,907) (412,484) (215,907)
Dividend income - - - -
Excess provision write back - -

Acturial gain/loss on long service benefit (57,463,471) 8,860,776 (57,463,471) 8,860,776
Impairment of Goodwill -

Deferred Tax 6,268,482 6,268,482

Operating Cash Flow Before Change in Working Capital 375,288,618 222,000,143 306,669,433 217,074,926
Working Capital Adjustments:

(Increase)/Decrease in Current Assets (1,907,644) (160,457,023) (20,320,633) 3,110,131
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Non-Current Assets (28,104,820) (518,209) (28,104,820) (70,708,313)
Increase/(Decrease) in Current Liabilities 132,393,305 4,961,814 132,687,145 (44,042,843)
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Non-Current Liabilities 38,853,247 (12,850,662) (20,420,660) (10,209,552)
Cash Flows from Operating Activities Before Income Tax 516,522,706 53,136,064 370,510,465 95,224,349
Income tax payment 31,953,519 71,328,826 24,726,902 47,176,687
Net Cash flows from operating activities 484,569,187 (18,192,763) 345,783,564 48,047,662
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of property, plant & equipments (1,194,010,788) (869,451,192) (487,474,133) (262,028,374)
Increase in capital work in progress - - - -
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment - - - -
Increase in Short Term Investment - - (150,000,000) (132,000,000)
Finance Income 2,718,667 1,158,345 284,800 94,539

Dividend income

Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities

(1,191,292,121.12)

(868,292,846.32)

(637,189,332.21)

(393,933,834.41)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from the issue of share capital

Increase/(Decrease) in long term borrowing & debt 960,158,000 907,513,333 411,858,000 429,433,333
Payment of interest & financial charges (182,854,202) (61,908,987) (95,558,321) (57,197,944)
Dividends paid (17,788,277) (50,420,150) (17,788,277) (50,420,150)
Grant Receipt/Refunded (5,954,000) 29,770,000 (5,954,000) 29,770,000
Other receipt and payment (59,513,722) (1,514 ,477) (8,073,924) (396,052)
Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities 694,047,798 823,439,720 284,483,478 351,189,187
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (12,675,136) (63,045,889) (6,922,291) 5,303,015
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 21,563,955 84,609,844 10,037,564 4,734,549
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 8,888,819 21,563,955 3,115,273 10,037,564
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Executive Chairman Director Partner
Sujan Kafle & Associates
Director Director Chartered Accountants
Director Director Date:
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Statement of Change in Equity of Group
For the year ended 32 Asar 2079

Attributable to Equity-Holders of the Company

Particulars

Balance at Shrawan 01, 2077

Share Capital

600,955,300

Other Reserves

1,682,304

PHARMA

REEED]
Earning

102,143,716

704,781,320

Non-Controlling
Interest

8,197,931

Total Equity

712,979,251

Non Controlling Interest in Fair Value

Consolidation adjustments

Comprehensive Income for the year

Profit for the year

38,668,262

685,566

279,759

(228,200)

39,405,386

39,405,386

27,668

39,433,055

Other Comprehensive Income, Net
of Tax

Gains/(losses) from investment in equity
instruments measured at fair value

Gains/(losses) on revaluation

Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans

Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge

Exchange gains/(losses)(arising from
translating financial assets of foreign operation)

Total Comprehensive Income for the
year

38,668,262

685,566

279,759

(228,200)

39,405,386

39,405,386

27,668

39,433,055

Transfer to Reserves during the year

Transfer from Reserves during the year

(251,921)

(251,921)

(251,921)

Transactions with Owners, directly
recognized in Equity

Share Issued

Share Based Payments

Dividend to Equity-Holders

Bonus Shares Issued

Cash Dividend Paid

(50,420,150)

(50,420,150)

(50,420,150)

Other

(730,252)

(730,252)

(24,172)

(754,424)

Total Contributions by and
Distributions

(251,921)

(51,150,402)

(51,402,323)

(24,172)

(51,426,495)

Balance at Asar 31, 2078

600,955,300

1,430,384

38,668,262

685,566

279,759

(228,200)

90,398,700

692,784,384

8,201,427

700,985,811
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For the year ended 32 Asar 2079

Balance at Shrawan 01, 2078 600,955,300 1,430,384 38,668,262 685,566

279,759

(228,200)

90,398,700

692,784,384

8,201,427

700,985,811

Non Controlling Interest in Fair Value

Consolidation adjustments

Comprehensive Income for the year

Profit for the year 100,603,951 10,300,051

(3,968,100)

(45,200)

(31,187,992)

75,702,710

75,702,710

(386,554)

75,316,155

Other Comprehensive Income, Net
of Tax

Gains/(losses) from investment in equity
instruments measured at fair value

Gains/(losses) on revaluation

Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans (43,097,603)

(43,097,603)

(43,097,603)

(43,097,603)

Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge

Exchange gains/(losses)(arising from
translating financial assets of foreign operation)

Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - 57,506,348 10,300,051

(3,968,100)

(45,200)

(31,187,992)

32,605,106

32,605,106

(386,554)

32,218,552

Transfer to Reserves during the year

Transfer from Reserves during the year (286,077)

(286,077)

(286,077)

Transactions with Owners, directly
recognized in Equity

Share Issued

Share Based Payments

Dividend to Equity-Holders

Bonus Shares Issued

Cash Dividend Paid

(17,788,277)

(17,788,277)

(17,788,277)

Other

(8,032,656)

(8,032,656)

(8,032,656)

Total Contributions by and Distributions (286,077)

(25,820,933)

(26,107,010)

(26,107,010)

Balance at Asar 32, 2079 600,955,300 1,144,307 96,174,610 10,985,617

(3,688,341)

(273,400)

(31,187,992)

97,182,874

699,282,480

7,814,873

707,097,352

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Executive Chairman Director
Director Director

Director Director

Partner

Sujan Kafle & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Date:

Place: Kathmandu
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Statement of Change in Equity of KMC
For the year ended 32 Asar 2079

Attributable to Equity-Holders of the Company

Particulars

Balance at Shrawan 01, 2077

Share Capital

600,955,300

Other Reserves

1,682,304

PHARMA

REENED]
Earning

83,654,931

686,292,535

Non-Controlling
Interest

Total Equity

686,292,535

Comprehensive Income for the year

Profit for the year

38,668,262

38,668,262

38,668,262

Other Comprehensive Income, Net of Tax

Gains/(losses) from investment in equity
instruments measured at fair value

Gains/(losses) on revaluation

Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans

Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge

Exchange gains/(losses)(arising from
translating financial assets of foreign operation)

Total Comprehensive Income for the year

38,668,262

38,668,262

38,668,262

Transfer to Reserves during the year

Transfer from Reserves during the year

(251,921)

(251,921)

(251,921)

Transactions with Owners, directly
recognized in Equity

Share Issued

Share Based Payments

Dividend to Equity-Holders

Bonus Shares Issued

Cash Dividend Paid

(50,420,150)

(50,420,150)

(50,420,150)

Other

(144,131)

(144,131)

(144,131)

Total Contributions by and Distributions

(251,921)

(50,564,281)

(50,816,202)

(50,816,202)

Balance at Asar 31, 2078

600,955,300

1,430,383

71,758,912

674,144,595

674,144,595

Balance at Shrawan 01, 2078

600,955,300

1,430,383

71,758,911

674,144,595

674,144,595
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For the year ended 32 Asar 2079

Comprehensive Income for the year

Profit for the year

100,603,951 | 100,603,951

100,603,951

Other Comprehensive Income, Net of Tax

Gains/(losses) from investment in equity
instruments measured at fair value

Gains/(losses) on revaluation

Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans

(43,097,603) | (43,097,603

(43,097,603)

Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge

Exchange gains/(losses)(arising from
translating financial assets of foreign operation)

Total Comprehensive Income for the year

57,506,348 57,506,348

57,506,348

Transfer to Reserves during the year

Transfer from Reserves during the year

(286,077)

(286,077)

(286,077)

Transactions with Owners, directly
recognized in Equity

Share Issued

Share Based Payments

Dividend to Equity-Holders

Bonus Shares Issued

Cash Dividend Paid

(17,788.277) | (17,788,277)

(17,788,277)

Other

(8,218,049) | (8,218,049)

(8,218,049)

Impairment of Goodwill

Total Contributions by and Distributions

(286,077)

(26,006,326) | (26,292,403)

(26,292,403)

Balance at Asar 32, 2079

600,955,300

1,144,306

103,258,933 | 705,358,539

705,358,539

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Executive Chairman

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Partner

Sujan Kafle & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Date:
Place: Kathmandu



Kathmandu Medical College Public Limited (‘herein referred as KMC") was established in 08,
Shrawan, 2066. Cunently, the company has an Authorized and issued capital of NpR 1 billion and
paid up Capital of NPR 600.955 million. Its Head Office is situated at Sinamangal, Kathmandu.

Kathmandu Medical College Public Limited is providing quality medical education and healthcare
services. The quality medical education is being provided through various medical programs like
MBBS, BDS, BSc. Nursing, Bachelor in Nursing, Post Graduate Programs.

Likewise, quality healthcare services are being offered through the teaching hospital with
well-equipped specialized medical professionals.

The accompanying consolidated statements comprise the Kathmandu Medical College Limited
(KMC) and its subsidiaries (together referred as group individually as ‘Group entities’).The KMC
is ultimate parent of the group.

KMC Pharmacy & Medical Supplies Subsidiary | 100% Private Limited which is registered
Pvt. Ltd. under Companies Act ,2063
Advanced Imaging & Diagnostic Centre | Subsidiary | 91.12% Private Limited which is register
Pvt. Ltd under Company Act2063
K.M.C Investment Pvt. Ltd. Subsidiary | 100% Private Limited which is registered
under Companies Act, 2063
Kasthamandap Diagnostic and Medical | Subsidiary | 100% Private Limited which is registered
Service Pvt. Ltd. under Companies Act,2063

KMC Pharmacy & Medical Supplies Pvt. Ltd. is a private limited company domiciled in Nepal. It is
incorporated under Companies Act, 2063 as on 2059-08-04. It operates from its registered office
situated in ward no-9 Sinamangal, Kathmandu, Nepal. Principal activities of KMC Pharmacy &
Medical Supplies Pvt. Ltd comprise of trading in medical and surgical items.

Advanced Imaging & Diagnostic Centre Pvt. Ltd. is a private limited company domiciled in Nepal.
It is incorporated under Companies Act, 2063 as on 2064/09/19. The Company has hold 503,000
shares out of total 552,000 shares of AIDC. It operates from its registered office situated in ward
no-9 Sinamangal, Kathmandu, Nepal. Principal activity of Advanced Imaging & Diagnostic Center
Pvt. Ltd. is to provide radio imaging services for medical diagnostic purposes.

K.M.C Investment Pvt. Ltd. (herein referred as "KMC Investment”) is a private limited company
domiciled in Nepal. It is incorporated under Companies Act, 2063 as on 2077/12/16. It operates
from its registered office situated in ward no-9 Sinamangal, Kathmandu, Nepal. Principal activities
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of K.IM.C Investment Pvt. Ltd. is to make investment in financial sectors, financial market, housing,
real estate and similar activities.

Kasthamandap Diagnostic and Medical Services Pvt. Ltd. is a private limited company domiciled
in Nepal. It is incorporated under Companies Act, 2063 as on 2078/04/08. It operates from its
registered office situated in ward no-9 Sinamangal, Kathmandu, Nepal. The primary activity of
Kasthamandap is to operate CT Scan Service, other lab services & sell medical and surgical
supplies.

The financial statements of the company have been prepared on accrual basis of accounting
except the cash flow statement which is prepared, on cash basis, using the indirect method.

The financial statements comprise Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss
and Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement
of Cash Flows and Notes to the accounts. The significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of consolidated financial statements are set out below in point no. 3.

These policies are consistently applied to all the years presented, except for the changes in
accounting policies disclosed specifically.

The Financial Statements of the company which comprises components mentioned above have
been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards 2018 (hereafter referred
as NFRS) issued by Accounting Standard Board of Nepal, endorsed by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Nepal and in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2063 and
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.

Reporting Period is the period from the first day of Shrawan (Mid July) of any year to the last day
of Ashad (Mid July) of next year as per the Nepali calendar.

1st Shrawan 2078 to 16th July 2021 to
Current Year Period 32nd Ashad 2079 16th July 2022

1st Shrawan 2077 to 16th July 2020 to
Previous Year Period 31st Ashad 2078 15th July 2021

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of Financial Statements
of the Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2063.

The accompanied Financial Statements have been authorized by the Board of Directors vide its
resolution dated September 5, 2022 and recommended for its approval by the Annual General
Meeting of the shareholders.

The Financial Statements of the company are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR), which is the
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currency of the primary economic environment in which the group operates. Financial information
has been presented in Nepalese Rupees.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with NFRS requires the management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income,
expenses and disclosures relating to the contingent liabilities reported in the financial statements.
The management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements
are prudent and reasonable. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Any revisions
into accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in the current and future periods. Most
significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies
that have effect on financial statements are as follows:

The entity has considered a wide range of information relating to present and future conditions,
including future projections of profitability, cash flows and capital resources while an assessment
of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and satisfied that it has the resources to
continue its business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, Board is not aware of any material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern and they do not intend either to liquidate or to cease operations of it. Therefore, the
Financial Statements are continued to be prepared on the going concern basis.

The company has applied its accounting policies consistently from year to year except for some
comparatives which have been grouped or regrouped to facilitate comparison, correction of errors
and any changes in accounting policy that have been separately disclosed.

The Institute of chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) has issued new NFRS called NFRS 2018
with the decision of the 244th council dated 11th Ashad 2077 which has prescribed some new
standards to be applicable from 16th July 2021.

The new Standards issued and are mandatory from financial year 2078-79 (2021-22) are set out
below:

a. NFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”, NFRS 14 “Regulatory Deferral Accounts”, NFRS 15
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers, NFRS 16 “Leases”, NFRS 17 “Insurance
Contracts” & NAS 29 “Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies” are applicable
from 16th July 2021, and

b. All other standards under NFRS 2018 are applicable from 16th July 2020.

NFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” is the new NFRS standard introducing new provisions regarding
Impairment of financial assets and hedging. It replaces standards NAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement” and NFRS 9 (2013) “Financial Instruments”.

NFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” is the new NFRS standard governing the
accounting principles for revenue. It replaces standards NAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and
NAS 18 “Revenue”. As per the provision of Para 60 of NFRS 15 “effects of the time value of
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money if the timing of payments agreed to by the parties to the contract (either explicitly or
implicitly) provides the customer or the entity with a significant benefit of financing the transfer
of goods or services to the customer. In those circumstances, the contract contains a significant
financing component. A significant financing component may exist regardless of whether the
promise of financing is explicitly stated in the contract or implied by the payment terms agreed to
by the parties to the contract.

As per the provision of Para 61 of NFRS 15 “The objective when adjusting the promised amount
of consideration for a significant financing component is for an entity to recognize revenue at an
amount that reflects the price that a customer would have paid for the promised goods or services
if the customer had paid cash for those goods or services when (or as) they transfer to the
customer (i.e., the cash selling price). An entity shall consider all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether a contract contains a financing component and whether that financing
component is significant to the contract, including both of the following: (a) the difference, if any,
between the amount of promised consideration and the cash selling price of the promised goods
or services; and (b) the combined effect of both of the following: (i) the expected length of time
between when the entity transfers the promised goods or services to the customer and when the
customer pays for those goods or services; and (ii) the prevailing interest rates in the relevant
market”.

As per the Para 62 of NFRS 15 “Notwithstanding the assessment in paragraph 61, a contract
with a customer would not have a significant financing component if any of the following factors
exist: (a) the customer paid for the goods or services in advance and the timing of the transfer
of those goods or services is at the discretion of the customer. (b) a substantial amount of the
consideration promised by the customer is variable and the amount or timing of that consideration
varies on the basis of the occurrence or non-occurrence of a future event that is not substantially
within the control of the customer or the entity (for example, if the consideration is a sales-based
royalty). (c) the difference between the promised consideration and the cash selling price of
the good or service (as described in paragraph 61) arises for reasons other than the provision
of finance to either the customer or the entity, and the difference between those amounts is
proportional to the reason for the difference. For example, the payment terms might provide the
entity or the customer with protection from the other party failing to adequately complete some or
all of its obligations under the contract.”

By following the above provision, we have not discounted the amount of revenue due to
immateriality of transaction.

NFRS 16 “Leases” changes the recognition of leases by lessees. It replaces NAS 17 “Leases”.
NFRS 16 requires lessees to recognize a right to use asset and a liability for future payments
arising from a lease contract. If a lessee elects not to apply the requirements in paragraphs
22-49 to either short-term leases or leases for which the underlying asset is of low value, the
lessee shall recognize the lease payments associated with those leases as an expense on either
a straight-line basis over the lease term or another systematic basis. The lessee shall apply
another systematic basis if that basis is more representative of the pattern of the lessee’s benefit.

There are no any lease commitment pending for more than twelve months as per agreement
concluded between lessor and lessee.

The Company has applied NAS 32 Financial Instruments Presentation (2013), NAS 39 Financial
Instruments Recognition and Measurements (2013) and NFRS 7 Financial Instruments —
Disclosures (2013) and NFRS-9 Financial Instruments (2013) for the recognition, presentation,
classification & disclosure related with Financial Instruments. Similarly, NFRS 15 Revenue for
booking revenue and NFRS 16 Leases for booking Leases has been applied.

%0 8 arffcs UdEsT 20T/©OR



Few carve- outs as follows on applicable Accounting Standards as provided by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Nepal have been used by the company:

Entity has used carve out on Para 9 of “NAS 39 Financial Instrument: Recognition and
Measurement “issued by Accounting Standard Board, Nepal as on 20 November 2019.

In relevant standard, Para 9 explains that, the calculation of effective interest includes all fees and
points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts.

Under allowed alternative treatment of under Carve Out the calculation of effective interest
includes all fees and points paid or received, unless it is immaterial or impracticable to determine
reliably, between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate (see
NAS 18 Revenue), transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current and the impact of the
discounting is material.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in
these Financial Statements, unless otherwise indicated.

The Financial Statements of the company have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except
where the standards require otherwise.

Further, the financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis of accounting except the
cash flow information which is prepared, on a cash basis, using the indirect method..

a. Goodwill on Consolidation

The Group’s financial statements comprise consolidation of the financial statements of the
KMC and those of the following entities:

a. The Subsidiary, in accordance with NFRS 10 — “Consolidated Financial Statements”
b. The proportionate share of the profit or loss and net assets of the Associate Company
in accordance with NAS — 28“Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures”

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method when control is transferred
to the Group as required under NFRS 3 — “Business Combination”.

Applying the acquisition method requires:

* identifying the acquirer;

» determining the acquisition date;

* recognizing and measuring the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed and any
non-controlling interest in the acquire; and

* recognizing and measuring goodwill or a gain from a bargain purchase

On the date of acquisition, the Group recognizes goodwill to the extent that the aggregate of
items listed below exceeds the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
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assumed, all measured in accordance with NFRS 3, which in general is the fair value.

The aggregate of below items:

* the consideration transferred;

« fair value of any non-controlling

* interest in the acquire; and

* in case of business combination achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair values of the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquire.

Where the amount calculated for goodwill results in a negative figure, it is accounted for as a gain
from a bargain purchase and is recognized in profit or loss, following the due process stated in
NFRS 3.

Non-Controlling Interests are measured at their proportionate share of the Subsidiary’s
identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition. Changes in the Group’s interest in a
Subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions.
This in effect is the adjustment made in the carrying amounts of the controlling and
non-controlling interests to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the Subsidiary.

Subsidiaries are entities that are controlled by the Company. The company has following
subsidiary companies:
+ KMC Pharmacy & Medical Supplies Pvt. Ltd.
» Advanced Imaging & Diagnostic Centre Pvt. Ltd.
+ K.M.C Investment Pvt. Ltd.
During fiscal year 2073/74 KMC has hold 21.01% shareholding in Advanced Imaging & Diagnostic
Centre Pvt. Ltd. which was accounted for Investment in Associate.

Subsequently in reporting period 2074/75, KMC has purchased additional 70.11% shares in
Advanced Imaging & Diagnostic Centre Pvt. Ltd. which has changed its status from associate to
subsidiary. Total investment in Advanced Imaging & Diagnostic Centre Pvt. Ltd till reporting date
is 91.12% (i.e. 503,000 shares out of total 552,000 shares of AIDC).

KMC has 100% holding in KMC Pharmacy & Medical Supplies Pvt. Ltd. for the reporting period
and all previous comparative periods presented.

KMC has 100% holding in KMC Investment Pvt. Ltd. for the reporting period and all previous
comparative periods presented.

KMC has 100% holding in newly established Kasthamandap Diagnostic and Medical Services
Pvt. Ltd. for the reporting period.

When the Company loses control over a Subsidiary, it derecognizes the assets and liabilities
of the former subsidiary from the consolidated statement of financial position.

However the Company has not lost control over its any subsidiaries.

The effect of all intra-group transactions and outstanding balances, including realized and
unrealized income and expenses are eliminated in the preparation of the Consolidated
Financial Statements
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Cash and Cash Equivalents include cash in hand, balances with bank and financial institutions
and money at call and at short notice. These are subject to insignificant risk of changes in their
fair value and are used by the Company in the management of short-term commitments.

Details of the Cash and Cash Equivalents are given in Notes to the Financial Statements.

All financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized on the trade date, i.e. the date on
which the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. This
includes ‘regular way trades’. Regular way trade means purchases or sales of financial
assets that required delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

The classification of financial instruments at the initial recognition depends on their
purpose and characteristics and the management’s intention in acquiring them. All financial
instruments are measured initially at their fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to acquisition or issue of such financial instruments except in the case of such
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, as per the Nepal Accounting
Standard - NAS 39 (Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement). Transaction
costs in relation to financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are dealt with the Statement of Profit or Loss.

At the inception, a financial asset is classified into one of the following:
(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

i. Financial assets held for trading

ii. Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
(b) Held to Maturity Financial Assets
(c) Loans and Receivables

(d) Financial assets available for sale

(a) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

A financial asset is classified as fair value through profit or loss if it is held for trading or is
designated at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired principally for the
purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term or holds as a part of a portfolio that
is managed together for short-term profit or position taking. This category also includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as
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hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Nepal Accounting Standards (NAS)
39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”.

Financial assets held for trading are recorded in the Statement of Financial Position at fair
value. Changes in fair value are recognized in ‘Net trading income’. Dividend income is
recorded in ‘Net trading income’ when the right to receive the payment has been established

The Company evaluates its held for trading asset portfolio, other than derivatives, to
determine whether the intention to sell them in the near future is still appropriate. When the
Company is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets and management’s
intention to sell them in the foreseeable future significantly changes, the company may elect
to reclassify these financial assets. Financial assets held for trading include instruments such
as government securities and equity instruments that have been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.

The Company designates financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in the following
circumstances:

* Such designation eliminates or significantly reduces measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise from measuring the assets.

+ The assets are part of a group of Financial assets, financial liabilities or both, which are
managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management or investment strategy.

» The assets contain one or more embedded derivatives that significantly modify the cash
flows that would otherwise have been required under the contract.

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or losses are recorded in the Statement
of Financial Position at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded in ‘Net gain or loss on
financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or losses’ in the Statement of Profit or
Loss. Interest earned is accrued under ‘Interest income’, using the effective interest rate method,
while dividend income is recorded under ‘Other operating income’ when the right to receive the
payment has been established.

The Company has not designated any financial assets upon initial recognition as designated at
fair value through profit or loss.

(b)

(c)

¥

Heldto Maturity Financial Assets

Held to Maturity Financial Assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturities which the Company has the intention and ability
to hold to maturity. After the initial measurement, held to maturity financial investments are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate, less impairment.
The amortization is included in ‘Interest income’ in the Statement of Profit or Loss. The
losses arising from impairment of such investments are recognized in the Statement of
Profit or Loss.

Loans and Receivables from Customers

Loans and receivables include non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market, other than:

* Those that the Company intends to sell immediately or in the near term and those that
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the company, upon initial recognition, designates as fair value through profit or loss.
* Those that the Company, upon initial recognition, designates as available for sale

* Those for which the Company may not recover substantially all of its initial investment
through contractual cash flows, other than because of credit deterioration.

After initial measurement, loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate, less allowance for impairment. Within this category, loans and
advances to the customers have been recognized at amortized cost using the method that very
closely approximates effective interest rate method. The amortization is included in ‘Interest
Income’ in the Statement of Profit or Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in
‘Impairment charge / reversal for loans and other losses’ in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

(d) Financial Assets Available for Sale

Available for sale financial assets include equity and debt securities. Equity Investments classified
Available for sale financial assets include equity and debt securities. Equity Investments classified
as ‘Available for Sale’ are those which are neither classified as ‘Held for neither Trading nor
‘Designated at fair value through profit or loss’. Debt securities in this category are intended to
be held for an indefinite period of time and may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in
response to changes in the market conditions.

After initial measurement, available for sale financial investments are subsequently measured
at fair value. Unrealized gains and losses are recognized directly in equity through ‘Other
comprehensive income / expense’ in the ‘Available for sale reserve’.

At the inception, the Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities. Accordingly
financial liabilities are classified as:

(@) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
i. Financial liabilities held for trading

ii. Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
(b) Financial liabilities at amortized cost

(a) Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Financial Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as fair value through
profit or loss. Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are measured at fair value and changes therein are recognized in profit or
loss.

(a) (i) Financial Liabilities Held for Trading

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired principally
for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term or holds as a part of
a portfolio that is managed together for short-term profit or position taking. This
category includes derivative financial instrument entered into by the company that
are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by
Nepal Accounting Standard - NAS 39 (Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement).
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a) (ii) Financial Liabilities Designated at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

The Company designates financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss at
following circumstances:

* Suchdesignation eliminates or significantly reduces measurement or recognition inconsistency
that would otherwise arise from measuring the liabilities.

* The liabilities are part of a group of Financial assets, financial liabilities or both, which are
managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management or investment strategy

* The liability contains one or more embedded derivatives that significantly modify the cash
flows that would otherwise have been required under the contract.

(b) Financial Liabilities At Amortized Cost

Financial instruments issued by the Company that are not classified as fair value through
profit or loss are classified as financial liabilities at amortized cost, where the substance of
the contractual arrangement results in the Company having an obligation either to deliver
cash or another financial asset to another Company, or to exchange financial assets or
financial liabilities with another Company under conditions that are potentially unfavorable
to the Company or settling the obligation by delivering variable number of the Company’s
own equity instruments.

(a) De-recognition of Financial Assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset (or where applicable a part of financial asset or part
of a group of similar financial assets) when:
* The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

+ The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or

+ The Company has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement and either the
Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

On de-recognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset
(or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognized) and the sum of the
consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and any
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income is recognized
in profit or loss.

(b) De-recognition of Financial Liabilities

Afinancial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability.

The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration
paid is recognized in profit or loss.
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Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the Statement
of Financial Position when and only when the Company has a legal right to set off the recognized
amounts and it intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted under
NFRSs or for gains and losses arising from a group of similar transaction such as in trading
activity.

The Amortized cost of a financial asset or liability is the amount at which the financial asset
or liability is measured at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the
cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between the initial
amount recognized and the maturity amount, minus any reduction for impairment.

‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (exit
price) in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the
principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Company has access at
that date. The fair value of liability reflects its non-performance risk.

The fair values are determined according to the following hierarchy as per NFRS 13:

Level 1 input are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date. (PARA 76)

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted market prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. (PARA 81)

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. (PARA 86)

The Company measures the fair value of an instrument using quoted prices in an active market if
available. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available and
represent actual and regularly occurring market transaction on arm’s length basis.

Further, all unquoted equity investments are recorded at cost.

One of the categories of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is “held for trading”
financial assets. All financial assets acquired or held for the purpose of selling in the short term or
for which there is a recent pattern of short-term profit taking are trading assets.

A derivative is a financial instrument whose value changes in response to the change in an
underlying variable such as an interest rate, commodity or security price, or index; that requires
no initial investment, or one that is smaller than would be required for a contract with similar
response to changes in market factors; and that is settled at a future date.

The Company does not have any derivative financial instruments.

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance, held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, for rental to others or for administrative
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purposes. An intangible asset is recognized if it is probable that the future economic benefits
that are attributable to the asset will flow to the entity and the cost of the asset can be measured
reliably. An intangible asset is initially measured at cost. Expenditure incurred on an intangible
item that was initially recognized as an expense by the Company in previous annual Financial
Statements or interim Financial Statements are not recognized as part of the cost of an intangible
asset at a later date.

Cost of purchased licenses and all computer software costs incurred, licensed for use by the
Company, which are not integrally related to associated hardware, which can be clearly identified,
reliably measured, and it's probable that they will lead to future economic benefits, are included
in the Statement of Financial Position under the category ‘Intangible assets’ and carried at cost
less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.

Expenditure incurred on software is capitalized only when it is probable that this expenditure
will enable the asset to generate future economic benefits in excess of its originally assessed
standard of performance and this expenditure can be measured and attributed to the asset
reliably. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.

Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible Assets, except for goodwill, are amortized on a straight—line basis in the Statement
of Profit or Loss from the date when the asset is available for use, over the best of its useful
economic life based on a pattern in which the asset’s economic benefits are consumed by the
KMC. Amortization methods, useful lives, residual values are reviewed at each financial year
end and adjusted if appropriate. The Company assumes that there is no residual value for its
intangible assets.

The subsequent cost of replacing a component of an item of property, plant and equipment is
recognized in the carrying amount of the item, if it is probable that the future economic benefits
embodied within that part will flow to the Company and it can be reliably measured. The cost of
day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are charged to the Statement of Profit or
Loss as incurred.

Depreciation is calculated by using the written down value (WDV) method on cost or valuation
of the Property & Equipment, freehold land and leasehold properties. The rates of depreciations
are given below:

Rate of Depreciation per annum (%)

Buildings 3% 3%
Leasehold Properties 20% 20%
Furniture & Fixture 15% 15%
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Electronic and Office Equip-ment 20% 20%
Transport Devices 15% 15%
Hospital & Scientific Equip-ment 15% 15%
Other Assets 15% 15%
Library Books 10% 10%

Depreciation on newly acquired property, plant and equipment are charged from the next month
in which it was acquired. Depreciation of property and equipment ceases when it is de-recognized
at the time of its disposal.

The methods of depreciation of assets are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each financial year.

These are expenses of capital nature directly incurred in the construction of buildings, major
plant and machinery and system development, awaiting capitalization. Capital work-in-progress
is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalized as part of the cost of an asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. The gain or losses arising from
de-recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in the Statement of Profit
or Loss when the item is derecognized. When replacement costs are recognized in the carrying
amount of an item of property, plant and equipment, the remaining carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognized. Major inspection costs are capitalized. At each such capitalization, the
remaining carrying amount of the previous cost of inspections is derecognized.

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by
which the Asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
higher of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on
the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk specific to the assets.
Assets that suffer an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end
of each reporting period. In case of such reversal, the carrying amount of the asset is increased
so as not to exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had there been no
impairment loss.
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An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance, held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, for rental to others or for administrative
purposes. An intangible asset is recognized if it is probable that the future economic benefits
that are attributable to the asset will flow to the entity and the cost of the asset can be measured
reliably. An intangible asset is initially measured at cost. Expenditure incurred on an intangible
item that was initially recognized as an expense by the Company in previous annual Financial
Statements or interim Financial Statements are not recognized as part of the cost of an intangible
asset at a later date.

Cost of purchased licenses and all computer software costs incurred, licensed for use by the
Company, which are not integrally related to associated hardware, which can be clearly identified,
reliably measured, and it's probable that they will lead to future economic benefits, are included
in the Statement of Financial Position under the category ‘Intangible assets’ and carried at cost
less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.

Expenditure incurred on software is capitalized only when it is probable that this expenditure
will enable the asset to generate future economic benefits in excess of its originally assessed
standard of performance and this expenditure can be measured and attributed to the asset
reliably. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.

Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible Assets, except for goodwill, are amortized on a straight-line basis in the Statement
of Profit or Loss from the date when the asset is available for use, over the best of its useful
economic life based on a pattern in which the asset’s economic benefits are consumed by the
KMC. Amortization methods, useful lives, residual values are reviewed at each financial year
end and adjusted if appropriate. The Company assumes that there is no residual value for its
intangible assets.

Computer Software 5 Years 5 Years

The carrying amount of an item of intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use. The gain or loss arising on de recognition of an item
of intangible assets is included in the Statement of Profit or Loss when the item is derecognized.

The Company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that Intangible
Assets may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if any. An impairment loss is recognized in
the Statement of Profit or Loss to the extent, asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and value
in use. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value
using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and risk specific to the assets.
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Investment property is property (land or a building or part of a building or both) held (by the owner
or by the lessee under a finance lease) to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both but not
for sale in the ordinary course of business.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequently
all investment properties (without exception) are reported at fair value with any gains or losses
in fair value reported in the income statement as they arise. The fair value used is that which
the property could be exchanged between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length
transaction and should reflect market conditions at the balance sheet date. If any property is
reclassified to investment property due to changes in its use, fair value of such property at the
date of reclassification becomes its cost for subsequent accounting.

Investment properties are derecognized when they are disposed of or permanently withdrawn from
use since no future economic benefits are expected. Transfers are made to and from investment
property only when there is a change in use. When the use of a property changes such that
it is reclassified as Property, Plant and Equipment, its fair value at the date of reclassification
becomes its cost for subsequent accounting.

Associates are those entities in which the Company has significant influence, but not control,
over the financial and operating policies.

As per Nepal Accounting Standard- NAS 12 (Income Taxes), tax expense is the aggregate
amount included in determination of profit or loss for the period in respect of current and deferred
taxation. Income Tax expense is recognized in the statement of Profit or Loss, except to the
extent it relates to items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income in which
case it is recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income. The Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation
is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to tax authorities.

Current tax assets and liabilities consist of amounts expected to be recovered from or paid to
Inland Revenue Department in respect of the current year, using the tax rates and tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted on the reporting date and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of prior years.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax
liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences except:

*  Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination, and at the time of
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

* In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and is
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probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carried forward
unused tax credits and unused tax losses (if any), to the extent that it is probable that the taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, carried forward unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized except:

*  Where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences arising
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination, and at the time of transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss.

* Inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in Subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary difference will be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is probable that sufficient profit will be available to allow the deferred tax asset
to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and
are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current and deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only to the extent that they relate to
income taxes imposed by the same taxation authority.

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. The amount recognized is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date, taking
in to account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation at that date. Provisions are
not recognized for future operating losses.

The gratuity benefits to the staffs were to be provided as per old KMC Staff Service Byelaws 2067
for staffs completing five years of service as follows: a) at the rate of half of monthly salary for
5-10 years period, b) at the rate of one-month basic salary for 10-15 years period, c) at the rate
of one and half of monthly basic salary for 15-20 years period, d) at the rate of two months basic
salary for above 20 years period.

After the revision in the staff service by-laws, new KMC Staff Service Byelaws 2077 has been
formulated. Accordingly, the gratuity scheme to be provided to the staffs were revised. As per the
new scheme, the gratuity was to be provided for staffs completing ten years of service as follows:
a) at the rate of half of monthly basic salary for 10-15 years period, b) at the rate of one-month
basic salary for 15-20 years period, c) at the rate of one and half of monthly basic salary for above
20 years period.

e  The attrition assumption should be Employer's best estimate of future attrition rates,
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reflecting both regular attrition and redundancies and current attrition rate applied is 15%.

e The salary escalation assumption should be Employer's best estimate of future salary
increments, reflecting both annual as well as promotional salary increments current salary
escalation rate is 8%.

e 100% of Nepali Assured Lives Mortality (NALM), 2009 An excerpt from the table is shown
below for ready reference.

Age Rate
20 0.000924
30 0.000977
40 0.000168
50 0.004436
60 0.011162
70 0.024058
80 0.061985
90 0.163507

The discount rate should be based on the yield to maturity on high quality corporate bonds having
term similar to that of the liability. In countries where there is no deep market in such bonds, the
market yields on government bonds shall be used. The currency and term of the bonds should be
consistent with the currency and estimated term of plan liabilities. The discount rate used is 9%.

The discount rate shown above is with reference to market yields on Citizen Saving Saving
Bonds ('‘Nagarik Bachat Patra 2083") issued by Nepal Rastra Bank

*The term of the citizen saving bond from which the discount rate above is sourced. However,
the DMT (in section 9.1) of the liability may be higher, and thus the discount rate can also be
expected to be higher. This is a modelling limitation due to unviability of required yield curve data.
However, using a lower discount rate results in higher liability and hence is a prudent approach.

Gratuity Report as per NAS19

Actuarial valuation of the gratuity liability as per the new gratuity scheme was carried out by
M/s Insured Tech Actuary, which is an independent consulting firm with domain expertise in the
fields of actuarial and financial valuation, actuarial and insurance consulting, risk management
and strategic management advisory. As per the valuation report dated 23 September 2022, the
gratuity liability was NPR 160,860,092 and the same amount of provision has been maintained
in books of account as follows:

Defined benefit obligation (liability)...................... : 160,860,092
Fair Value of Plan assets ....cc...cceviieeiiireeiiinennnnns : 107,091,943
Fund status / Surplus (Deficit) .......cccovvvvvviiiiinnneee. : (53,768,149)

The amount charged in profit and loss account in fiscal year 2078/79 is Rs. 2,50,73,929.

The new gratuity scheme was not accepted by the employees and the decision regarding
finalization of the gratuity scheme to be provided to the employees is pending in the court. As
such, management has decided not to reduce the liability as per the actuarial valuation until the
gratuity scheme is finalized by the court in line with NAS 19 Employee Benefits, read along with
NAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors under the principle of
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conservatism.

Company has policy to provide 12 days as sick leave and 18 days as home leave.

At the end of every year (July), any sick leave balance in excess of 45 days is automatically
enchased and at the end of every year (July), any home leave balance in excess of 45 days is
automatically enchased.

Actuarial Assumption:

e  The attrition assumption should be Employer's best estimate of future attrition rates, reflecting
both regular attrition and redundancies. The current attrition rate for leave calculation is 5%.

e The salary escalation assumption should be Employer's best estimate of future salary
increments, reflecting both annual as well as promotional salary increments. The current
salary escalation rate for leave calculation is 8%.

e 100% of Nepali Assured Lives Mortality (NALM), 2009 An excerpt from the table is shown
below for ready reference.

Age Rate
20 0.000924
30 0.000977
40 0.000168
50 0.004436
60 0.011162
70 0.024058
80 0.061985
90 0.163507

e The discount rate should be based on the yield to maturity on high quality corporate bonds
having term similar to that of the liability. In countries where there is no deep market in such
bonds, the market yields on government bonds shall be used. The currency and term of
the bonds should be consistent with the currency and estimated term of plan liabilities. The
discount rate used is 9%.

Financial Summary is as follows:

Description 15-7-2021 16-7-2022
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation 8,615,965.00 9,713,608

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. The specific recognition criteria must also
be met before revenue is recognized.

Premises are taken are operating lease which are operating in nature. The expenses under
operating leases as per the lease agreement are charged to other operating expenses in the
statement of profit and loss. NFRS 17, “Leases” is applied for accounting leases.

0¥ &l aiffcd URdeel Q06T/OR



Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at exchange rates prevailing on the date of
transaction. Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the
year are recognized as trading gains or losses in the statement of profit and loss.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at average
exchange rates and resultant differences are recognized as revaluation gains or losses in the
statement of profit and loss account.

Share capital and reserves are different classes of equity claims. Equity claims are claims on
the residual interest in the assets of the entity after deducting all its liabilities. Changes in equity
during the reporting period comprise income and expenses recognized in the statement of
financial performance; plus contributions from holders of equity claims, minus distributions to
holders of equity claims.

The Company presents basic and diluted Earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares.
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit and loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

The formula used to calculate a company's diluted EPS is the Company’s net income minus
preferred dividends divided by the weighted average number of shares outstanding plus the
impact of convertible preferred shares and the impact of options, warrants, and other dilutive
securities. However, there is no need to calculated diluted EPS.

Dividend on ordinary shares are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity when they
are approved by the Company’s shareholders. Interim Dividend is deducted from equity when
they are declared and no longer at the discretion of the Company. Dividend for the year that is
approved after the reporting date is disclosed as an event after the reporting date.

The cash flow statement has been prepared using ‘The Indirect Method’, whereby gross cash
receipts and gross cash payments of operating activities, finance activities and investing activities
have been recognized.

The comparative figures and phrases have been rearranged wherever necessary to conform to
the current year’s presentation.

Following explanatory information relating to figures presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position and in the consolidated statement of profit or loss is presented in this section.

Atthe date when KMC had acquired additional 70.11% shares in Advanced Imaging and Diagnostic
Center Pvt. Ltd, Goodwill has been computed as per NFRS 3, "Business Combination”. Non-
Controlling interest and value of existing shareholding has been valued at fair value.

More details of Goodwill computed are as follows:
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Fair value of Previously held Equity Interest 17,400,000
Fair value of PC 58,050,000
Fair value of NCI 7,350,000
Less: Fair value of net assets on acquisition 59,252,570
Goodwill 23,547,430
Less: Impairment of Goodwill -
Goodwill for consolidated statement 23,547,430

Impairment of Goodwill

From the date of recognition of goodwill, as required by NAS 36 Impairment, at the end of every
fiscal year, goodwill has been tested for impairment.

During this fiscal year also goodwill has been tested for impairment. But no any impairment has
been identified on goodwill.

(a) Identify Related Parties

Holding Company:

The company does not have any holding company.
Subsidiaries:

The company has following subsidiary companies:

1 KMC Pharmacy and Medical Supplies Private 100% holding of KMC
Limited
2 Advanced Imaging & Diagnostic Centre Pvt. Ltd 503,000 shares out of total 552,000 shares i.e.
91.12% holding of KMC
3 K.M.C Investment Pvt. Ltd. 100% holding of KMC
4 Kasthamandap Diagnostic and Medical Service Pvt. | 100% holding of KMC
Ltd.

The Company has entered following nature of transactions with above subsidiaries:

4%

The nature of transaction entered into with KMC Pharmacy and Medical Supplies Private
Limited includes Representation in Board of Directors, assists in overall operation and
management, Purchase of medicines and surgical items, charging of monthly rent, Charging
of common administrative expenses etc. All these transactions were occurred as arm’s
length transactions.

The nature of transaction entered into with Advanced Imaging & Diagnostic Centre Pvt. Ltd
includes Representation in Board of Directors, assists in overall operation and management,
rental and electricity charges received. The company had also taken interest free short-term
loan from AIDC. All these transactions were occurred as arm’s length transactions.

The nature of transaction entered into with K.M.C Investment Pvt. Ltd includes Representation
in Board of Directors, Assists in overall operation and management etc. The Company
has taken interest free loan & advance from KMC Investment. All these transactions were
occurred as arm’s length transactions.

The nature of transaction entered into with Kasthamandap Diagnostic and Medical Service
Pvt. Ltd includes Representation in Board of Directors, assists in overall operation and
management, rental income received for its building provided to KMC Hospital and rental
expense payment for using of Lap Plant & Machinery, House Space, required consumables
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and employee from KMC Hospital. The company had also provided interest free loan &
advance. All these transactions were occurred as arm’s length transactions.

The company does not have any associates.

Any shareholders of the entity or parent entity who has control, joint control or significant influence
over the entity are classified under other related parties of the company and such parties are as
follows:

1 Nobel Medical College Teaching Hospital Pvt. Ltd 20.339%
2 Mrs. Indira Baral 9.217%
3 Mrs. Soina Sharma 7.924%
4 Mrs. Sobhana Pokherel 7.638%
5 Mr. Prarsata Pandey 5.613%
6 Mr. Bijay Kumar Pandey 5.114%
7 Mr. Ishan Sharma 4.352%
8 Charity International Nepal 3.732%
9 Mr. Kamal Prasadh Gyawali 3.518%
10 Mr. Om Prasad Pandey 3.129%
11 Mr. Hom Devi Neupane 1.381%
12 Dr. Sunil Kumar Sharma 1.255%
13 Mr. Sulabh Panta 1.018%

Fellow Subsidiaries:

The company does not have has any fellow subsidiary companies.

key Management Personnel (KMP):

According to the NAS 24 - Related Party pisclosures, key management personnel are those having
authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity. Related
party also includes Close Family Member (CFM) of Board of directors.

KMPs of the Kasthamandap includes following persons:

Dr. Sunil Kumar Sharma

Executive Chairman

Vijay Kumar Pandey

BOD and Shareholder

Netra Bandhu Baniya

BOD and Shareholder

Dr. Sandip Guragain

BOD and Shareholder

Soina Sharma

BOD and Shareholder

Chudamani Bhandairi

BOD and Shareholder

Indira Sharma Baral

Shareholder and CFM of BOD

Homa Devi Neupane

Shareholder and CFM of BOD

Ishan Sharma

Shareholder and CFM of BOD

Principal

S22 N O~hWIN|~

0 Prof Dr. Ratindra Nath Shrestha
1 Dr. Suman Shrestha

Hospital Director

(b) Key Management Personnel Compensation:
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Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Short-term employee benefits 83,74,502 48,41,813
Post-employment benefits - -
Other long-term benefits - -
Termination benefits - -
Meeting Fees - -
Total - -

Payment to Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Annual salary and allowances - -
Performance based allowances - -
i) Employee Bonus - -
i) Benefits as per prevailing provisions - -
ii) Incentives - -
Insurance related benefits - -
i) Life Insurance = -
ii) Accident Insurance - -
iii) Health Insurance (including family members) - -
Other benefits - -
Total - -
There is no any CEO in Kathmandu Medical College Public Limited except principle and hospital

directors and compensation paid to principal and hospital directors are included in point number
(b) key management personnel compensation.

(c) Related Party Transactions:
ET T ETES Holding  Subsidiries  Associate Fellow Key

Company Subsidiries =~ Mana-gerial
Per-sonnel

Hospital
Income

Student
Revenue

Other Income

Rental Income 42.00,000 42.00,000
Received

Interest
Income
Received
Sale of
Property,
Plant &
Equipment

SR

)
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Purchase
of Property,
Plant &
Equipment
Hospital
Supplies
Purchase
Interest 23,86,382 23,86,382
Expense Paid
Rental 6,00,000 6,00,000
Expense Paid
Dividend

Meeting

Fee/Allowance

Allowances to
Directors

Other income
& expense

(d) Related Party Balances:

Particulars Holding  Subsidiries  Associate Fellow Key

Mana-gerial

Subsidiries
Per-sonnel

Trade
Receivables

Other 2,02,65,177 2,02,65,177
Non-Trade
Receivables
Trade
Payables
Other
Non-Trade
Payables
Other Payable 6,70,00,000 6,70,00,000
Loan &
Advance
Payables
Other Payable 6,70,00,000 6,70,00,000
Loan &
Advance
Payables

There were no other related party transactions with other board members and key management
personnel; transactions, if any, with directors, related and key management personnel, related
entities which occurred in the normal course of company’s operations were conducted on terms
no more favorable than similar transactions with other customers.

g,
@@%
2,
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The company has following mid- and long-term loan.

NIBL-Fixed Term Loan 51,11,00,000
SBL Fixed Term Loan 47,27,80,000
SBLImport Loan 3,88,03,000
SBL- Short Term Loan 0
Term Loan — NIBL 0
Total 1,02,26,83,000

With consideration of carve out provide as referred in Note 2.6 in effective rate computation. Financial
liability is not amortized.

4.4 Lease Commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable
operating lease, where the company is lessee:

Payable within next 1 year
Payable later than1 year
Sub total

Finance lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non
cancellable Finance lease, where the company is
lessee:

Payable within next 1 year
Payable later than1 year
Sub total

Grand total
As per NFRS 16, “If a lessee elects not to apply the requirements in paragraphs 22—-49 (NFRS
16) to either short-term leases or leases for which the underlying asset is of low value, the lessee
shall recognize the lease payments associated with those leases as an expense on either a

straight-line basis over the lease term or another systematic basis. The lessee shall apply another
systematic basis if that basis is more representative of the pattern of the lessee’s benefit”.

There are no any lease commitment pending for more than twelve months as per agreement
concluded between lessor and lessee.

4.5 Event after reporting period

Kathmandu Medical College Public Ltd. has not entered into any reportable event after the
reporting date.

4.6 Regrouped/Rearrangement

Previous Years Figures have been regrouped/ rearranged to have comparative view of Financial
Statements. Figures stated in Financial Statements have been rounded off to a nearest rupee.
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Property Plant and Equipment

Hospita & Grant Aslsets Grant A?sets Electronic :
Partculars Buiding Scientlfc (Hospital (Hosp'ltal % Office Fur.mture & Tran.sport LeaseHold
Equipments &‘Ofﬁce &.Offlce Equipments Fixtures Devices Assets
Equipments) | Equipments)

Cost
Balance as on 31st Ashad 2077 | 217,259,322 | 1,495,515,802 | 697,000,200 -| 7,009,587 | 83,636,220 | 142,653,433 | 37,193,585 | 20,485,543 | 65,883,417 2,766,637,109
wip Assets
Addition during the Year

Acquisition - 50,860,633 29,770,000 11,220,314 1,636,532 6,795,889 3,939,328 104,222,696

Capitalization 1,383,569 - - - 1,383,569
Disposal during the year - (2,763,000) - | (3,035,000) (5,798,000)
Adjustment/Revaluation - - - -
Balance as on 31 Ashad 2078 217,259,322 | 1,496,899,371 | 745,097,833 | 29,770,000 7,009,587 | 94,856,534 | 144,289,964 | 40,954,474 | 20,485,543 | 69,822,745 2,866,445,373
Addition during the Year

Acquisition 29,555,971 82,504,176 14,865,787 4,370,133 | 8,660,937 | 1,177,362 | 3,258,095 | 1,358,206 145,750,666

Capitalization 14,153,696 | 368,032,708 382,186,404
Disposal during the year (372,900) (11,784,751) (12,157,651)
Adjustment/Revaluation
Balance as on 32 Ashad 2079 217,259,322 | 1,540,609,038 | 1,195,634,717 | 29,770,000 7,009,587 | 109,349,421 | 148,660,097 | 37,830,660 | 21,662,905 | 73,080,841 | 1,358,206 | 3,382,224,792
Depn
Balance as on 31st Ashad 2077 310,672,642 | 413,391,211 5,327,279 | 58,362,005 | 90,405,381 | 21,908,374 | 11,949,025 | 42,914,839 954,930,756
Impairment for the year
Depreciation charge for the year 35,579,884 43,712,724 251,922 5,806,592 7,967,969 | 2,338,992 853,652 | 3,492,062 100,003,798
Disposals (76,138) (2,052,622) (2,128,760)
Adjustments - - - -
Balance as on 31 Ashad 2078 -| 346,252,526 | 457,027,797 -| 5579201 | 64,168,597 | 98,373,350 | 22,194,745 | 12,802,677 | 46,406,901 - | 1,052,805,794
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Impairment for the year
Depreciation charge for the year 34,519,405 66,537,300 | 5,954,000 286,077 | 7,846,741.16 7,182,418 | 3,066,775 44,081 | 3,759,402 113,184 129,309,384
Disposals (9,472,348) (9,472,348)
Adjustments
Balance as on 32 Ashad 2079 380,771,931 | 523,565,097 | 5,954,000 5,865,278 | 72,015,338 | 105,555,768 | 15,789,171 50,166,304 113,184 | 1,172,642,829
12,846,758
Capital Work in Progress 30,259,830 86,902,830 5,251,335 122,413,995
Net Book Value 217,259,322 | 1,159,837,106 | 672,069,620 | 23,816,000 1,144,309 | 37,334,083 | 43,104,329 | 22,041,489 | 8,816,147 | 22,914,537 2,209,581,963
As on Asar end 2078 217,259,322 | 1,150,646,845 | 288,070,036 | 29,770,000 1,430,386 | 30,687,937 | 45,916,614 | 18,759,730 | 7,682,866 | 23,415,844 1,813,639,580
As on 31 Ashad 2079 217,259,322 | 1,159,837,106 | 672,069,620 | 23,816,000 1,144,309 | 37,334,083 | 43,104,329 | 22,041,489 | 8,816,147 | 22,914,537 2,209,581,963
. . . Partner

Executive Chairman Director Sujan Kafle & Associates
. . Chartered Accountants

Director Director

Date:
Director Director Place: Kathmandu




Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Asar 2079
Investment

Particulars

Current Year
Investment in Associates

Previous Year

HISHTS! HfSehel Thers! Ufseteh

KMC

Current Year

4.4
NPR

Previous year

Investment in Subsidiaries

Total -

4.4.1 Investment in Subsidiaries Group KMC
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous year
Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries -
Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries 354,012,197 - 354,012,197 204,012,197
Total Investment 354,012,197 - 354,012,197 204,012,197
Less: Impairment Allowances -
Net Carrying Amount 354,012,197 - 354,012,197 204,012,197
4.4.2 Information relating to Subsidiaries NPR
of the KMC
Percentage of Ownership held by KMC
Current year Previous year
KMC Pharmacy & Medical Supplied 100% 100%
Pvt. Ltd.
Advanced Imaging & Diagnostic Center 91% 91%
Pvt. Ltd.
KMC Investment Pvt. Ltd. 100% 100%
Total
Other Non Current Assets
45
NPR
) Group KMC
Particulars X .
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous year
Deposits 32,115,019 4,010,199 32,115,019 4,010,199
Total 32,115,019 4,010,199 32,115,019 4,010,199
Deferred Tax
46
NPR
Group KMC
Particulars
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous year
Deferred Grant Liabilty 23,816,000 2,650,998 23,816,000 -
Deferred tax liability 75,063,977 56,684,171 71,024,389 56,377,425
Total 51,247,977 54,033,173 47,208,389 56,377,425
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4.7

NPR
Group KMC
Particulars
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous year
Short Term Investments (Fixed Deposit)
Total
48
NPR
Group KMC
Particulars
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous year
Inventories
Total 21,105,745 10,394,358 8,455,725 8,920,483
49
NPR
Group KMC
Particulars
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous year
Considered Good -
Trade Receivable 6,717,880 3,935,141 -
Considered Doubtful -
Trade Receivable -
less: Provision for Impairment -
Total 6,717,880 3,935,141 -
410
NPR
Group KMC
Particulars
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous year
Loans and Advances 62,964,323 10,000,000 -
Deposits 30,000 36,499 -
Other Receivable 180,100,263 241,470,289 166,919,642 142,531,104
Vat Receivable 483,351
Prepaid expenses 5,465,581 7,021,282 5,454,413 6,955,630
Receivables from related parties -
Accrued Interest in Fixed Deposit -
Accrued Interest -Gratuity Fund (CIT) 7,277,828 9,379,758 7,277,828 9,379,758
Less: Non current portion -
Total 256,321,346 267,907,829 179,651,883 158,866,493
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4.1
NPR

Particulars Group e
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous year
Cash in Hand 1,847,018 1,892,420 1,704,378 1,892,420
Balances with BFls 6,009,723 3,884,629 1,410,895 349,856
Money at Call and Short Notice 1,032,077 15,786,906 7,795,289
Other
Total 8,888,818 21,563,955 3,115,273 10,037,564
412
NPR
Particulars Group Kme
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous year
Trade Payable 345,714,711 170,169,778 310,813,825 163,357,636
Deposits from Parties 10,908,842 10,908,842 9,600,000 9,600,000
Duties & Taxes 466,221 102,957 -
Other Payable 259,434,456 283,036,786 237,470,728 225,530,403
Endowment Fund 1,055,423 4,091,077 1,038,615 4,091,077
Total 617,579,653 468,309,442 558,923,168 402,579,117
4.12.1 Other Payables
Particulars Group Kie
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous year
Salaries payable 120,852,975 66,567,930 120,852,975 66,567,930
Security deposit from students - - -
Insurance Claim 42,638 41,138 42,638 41,138
Kathmandu University Payable 11,759,458 3,674,600 11,759,458 3,674,600
g:;:ngzrli;;iospital Pharmacy 56,645 56,645
Taxes & duties payable 9,686,816 8,754,583 9,372,161 8,754,583
Audit fees payable 700,600 557,500 565,000 557,500
Commission Payable 2,689,472 2,689,472 2,689,472 2,689,472
Dividend Payable 19,433,332 8,238,245 19,433,332 8,238,245
Staff bonus payable 13,386,040 5,139,621 13,386,040 5,139,621
House Rent Payable 94,990 94,990
LC Account Payable 59,008,791 126,691,625 59,008,791 126,691,625
Lease hold payables 0 0
Tution Fees Payable 2,504,454 2,504,454
Other payables 21,523,381 168,647 9,908 168,647
Rention Money Under Contract 350,953 350,953 350,953 350,953
Total 259,434,456 225,530,403 237,470,728 225,530,403

&8 affcp HfadigeT Q06T/©R
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4.12.2 Endowment Fund Group KMC
Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous year
Gold Medal Fund 1,790,726 1,790,726 1,790,726 1,790,726
Less: Gold Medal Fund Investment (2,315,305) (2,266,131) (2,315,305) (2,266,131)
Poor Patient Treatment Fund 2,968,849 2,968,849
Less: Poor Patient Treatment Fund Inv. (372,848) (371,306) (372,848) (371,306)
Chairman Welfare Fund 37,089 37,089 37,089 37,089
Disaster Relief Management Fund 304,604 304,604 304,604 304,604
Employees EHCS Fund 574,551 574,551 574,551 574,551
Helpless Service Fund 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000
Accident Treatment Fund 121,288 121,288 121,288 121,288
Poor Patient Fund 16,808 32,896 32,896
KMC Foundation 99,262 99,262 99,262 99,262
KMC Staff Welfare Fund 774,250 774,250 774,250 774,250
Total 1,055,423 4,091,077 1,038,615 4,091,077
413
NPR
Particulars Croup e
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous year
Bank overdraft & demand loan- current 139,769,801 165,127,581 139,769,801 165,127,581
Total 139,769,801 165,127,581 139,769,801 165,127,581
4.14
NPR
Particulars Group Ke
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous year
Current Portion of Long term Borrowing 37,325,000 18,820,000 28,625,000 16,900,000
Current Portion of Studens deposits 39,404,160 19,616,473 39,404,160 19,616,473
Current Portion of Advance Tuition Fees 29,811,813 29,811,813
Total 76,729,160 68,248,287 68,029,160 66,328,287
415
NPR
Particulars Group KMe
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous year
Current Tax Assets
Current year Income Tax Assets 58,296,862 69,772,615 58,000,446.4 60,134,758
Tax Assets of Prior Periods -
Current Tax Liabilities -
Current year Income Tax Liabilities 5,944,147 20,575,015 16,585,778 20,575,015
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Tax Liabilities of Prior Periods

Total (52,352,715) (49,197,600) (41,414,668) (39,559,743)
415
NPR
Group KMC
Particulars
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous year
Secured bank loans- non current 2,020,438,000 1,060,280,000 994,058,000 582,200,000
Total 2,020,438,000 1,060,280,000 994,058,000 582,200,000
4.16
NPR
Group KMC
Particulars
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous year
Advance Tution and Hostel Fees 151,362,539 188,363,156 151,362,539 188,363,156
Liapiliti_es for emloyees defined benefit 63,512,131 37,804,137 63,512,131 39,614 578
obligations
g::ocsﬁ"ent porton of refundable 104,775,476 | 129,348,163 104,775,476 129,348,163
Advance from Advance Imaging 67,000,000 55,984,987 67,000,000 55,984,987
Rent Deposit from Hospital Pharmacy 9,400,000 9,400,000 9,400,000 9,400,000
Total 396,050,146 420,900,442 396,050,146 422,710,884
417
NPR
Group KMC
Particulars - -
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous year
Ordinary shares 600,955,300 600,955,300 600,955,300 600,955,300
Convertible preference shares (equity i
component only)
Irredeemable preference shares (equity i
component only)
Perpetual debt (equity component only)
Total 600,955,300 600,955,300 600,955,300 600,955,300
4.18.1 Ordinary Shares
Group KMC
Particulars - -
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous year
Authorized Capital

10,000,000 Ordinary share of Rs. 100
each

1,000,000,000

1,000,000,000

1,000,000,000

1,000,000,000

Issued capital

10,000,000 Ordinary share of Rs. 100
each

1,000,000,000

1,000,000,000

1,000,000,000

1,000,000,000

&8 affcp HfadigeT Q06T/©R
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Subscribed and paid up capital
5,509,553 General Share of Rs.100
each
500,000 Staff Share of Rs.100 each
gf&g’553 Ordinary share of Rs 100 600,955,300 | 600,955,300 600,955,300 600,955,300
Total 600,955,300 600,955,300 600,955,300 600,955,300
4.18.2 Ordinary share ownership
Particulars Group e
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous year
Domestic ownership
Nepal Government
"A" class licensed institutions
Other licensed institutions
Other Institutions
Public -
Other 100% - 100% 100%
Foreign ownership -
Total 100% - 100% 100%
419
NPR
Particulars Group e
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous year
Grant assets reserves 1,144,307 1,430,384 1,144,307 1,430,384
Retained earnings 97,182,873 90,398,700 103,258,933 71,758,911
Other Reserve -
Acuturial Gain/loss Reserve -
Total 98,327,179 91,829,084 104,403,239 73,189,295

KMC has received hospital equipments and office equipments amounting to NRs. 70,09587 in grant till this fiscal year which was credited
to Grant Asset Reserve Account and Hospital & Office Equipments (For running of High Dependency Unit-HDU) amounting to NRs.
29,770,000 in grant till this fiscal year which was credited to Deferred Grant Liabilities Account. During this period depreciation amounting to
NRs. 286,077 and amounting to NRs. 5,954,000 respectively has been charged in these assets and the equal amount has been transferred
to Statement of Profit or Loss from Grant Asset Reserve Account & Deferred Grant Liabilities Account respectively.

419
NPR
Group KMC
Particulars
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous year

Contingent liabilities

Undrawn and undisbursed facilities

Capital commitment

Lease Commitment

Litigation

Total
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4.18.2 Ordinary share ownership

Particulars

Group

KMC

Current Year

Previous Year Current Year Previous year

Operating lease commitments

Not later than 1 year

Later than 1 year but not later than
5 years

Later than 5 years

Sub total

Finance lease commitments

Not later than 1 year

Later than 1 year but not later than
5 years

Later than 5 years

Sub total

Grand total
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Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Asar 2079
Revenue

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

KMC

Current Year

4.21
NPR

Previous year

Admission & Tuition Fees 432,962,843 321,637,259 432,962,843 321,637,259
Hospital Income 464,624,897 688,195,343 464,624,897 688,195,843
Sales Pharmacy 3,388,449 | 32,172,913.79
Sales AIDC 2,014,775.00
Radiology Income -KDMS 18,702,047
Total 919,678,236 |  1,044,020,790 897,587,740 1,009,833,101
4.21.1 Admission and Tuition Fees Group KMC
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous year
Admission Fees - MBBS 123,915,304 - 123,915,304
Admission Fees - B. Sc. Nursing -
Admission Fees - BDS 22,215,369 - 22,215,369
Admission Fees - BNS 2,499,990 - 2,499,990
Tuition Fees - MBBS 227,237,857 255,776,112 227,237,857 255,776,112
Tuition Fees - B. Sc. Nursing 13,736,250 19,126,275 13,736,250 19,126,275
Tuition Fees - BDS 41,101,553 45,632,372 41,101,553 45,632,372
Tuition Fees - BNS 2,256,520 1,102,500 2,256,520 1,102,500
Total 432,962,843 321,637,259 432,962,843 321,637,259
4.21.2 Hospital Income Group KMC
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous year
Registration Charges 100,522,997 3,588,739 100,522,997 3,588,739
Bed Charges 140,757,438 140,757,438
Bed Charges-COVID 15,115,067 29,831,000 15,115,067 29,831,000
Pathology Charges 8,212,100 300,645,057 8,212,100 300,645,057
X-Ray, ECG, Echo., Endoscopy 110,109,557 42,171,199 110,109,557 42,171,199
Ultrasound Charges 55,396,900 27,981,242 55,396,900 27,981,242
Operation Charges 72,415,908 72,029,741 72,415,908 72,029,741
Dialysis Income 8,715,429 6,890,578 8,715,429 6,890,578
Dental Income 38,409,410 5,103,120 38,409,410 5,103,120
Other Hospital Charges 55,727,530 59,197,729 55,727,530 59,197,729
Total 464,624,897 688,195,843 464,624,897 688,195,843
Other income
422
NPR
) Group KMC
Particulars
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous year
Application Fees 340,499 229,000 340,499 229,000
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Hostel Income 35,608,502 47,712,902 35,608,502 47,712,902

Rental Income 201,404,507 43,278,363 131,077,189 36,687,251

Project Income 1,800,106 1,800,106

Interest Income 2,718,667 1,158,345 284,800 94,539

Internship, Examination & Other 4,514,535 12,093,934 4,514,535 12,093,934

Charges

Clinical Charges from PG 113,719,383 19,618,905 113,719,383 19,618,905

Elective Course Income 7,922,384 10,379,672 7,922,384 10,379,672

Dividend Income 27,044

Donation Received 106,838 106,838

Discount Received 627,221 421,805

Amount Transferred from Deferred 6,240,077 251,922 6,240,077 251,922

Income

Gain on sale of fixed assets 908,611 2,215,907 412,484 215,907

Other Miscellaneous Income 7,995,348 10,910,516 7,768,166 10,749,725

Sale to Hospital Pharmacy 10,331 10,331

Scrap Sales 303,110 303,110

Water Supply Income 133,750 133,750

Electricity Charge/Rebate/Received 2,533,793 2,533,793

Forensic Income- Autopsy Posting 1,648,000 1,648,000

Total 388,418,493 147,983,347 314,728,584 138,150,925
423
NPR

Particulars Group ke
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous year

Chemicals & glasswares 17,360,711 106,034,609 17,360,711 106,034,609

X-Ray films and chemicals 5,897,163 8,632,430 5,897,163 8,632,430

Oxygen 1,581,553 17,399,975 1,581,553 17,399,975

Hospital supplies and Tools 55,660,092 40,770,025 55,660,092 41,718,199

Printing, stationery and reproduction costs 7,001,282 4,601,763 7,001,282 4,601,763

Cleaning material 2,984,512 1,822,174 2,984,512 1,822,174

Teaching materials & newspapers 2,958,620 2,958,620

Housekeeping & linen expenses 2,446,158 8,080,597 2,446,158 8,080,597

Add: Opening inventories 12,030,614 12,030,614

Less: Closing inventories (8,920,483) (8,920,483)

Cost of goods sold pharmacy 2,391,508 27,898,722

Cost of Sales AIDC 2,837,657

Total 95,322,978 224,146,702 92,931,471 194,358,499
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4.24

NPR
Particulars Group ke
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous year

Wages and salaries and other benefits 452,354,140 534,143,324 452,354,140 528,455,040
Contributions to defined contribution 15,299,402 22,247,143 15,299,402 22,029,405
plans (PF)
Staff gratuity Expenses (Actuary (32,389,542) (32,389,542) -
Valuation)
Extended hospital services allowance 62,813,481 20,393,117 62,813,481 20,393,117
Leave encashment 1,131,368 9,028,628 1,131,368 8,860,776
Staff development expenses
Uniform Expenses
SSF Contribution Expenses 13,368,573 3,598,322 13,368,573 3,598,322
Staff Bonus 8,247,061 5,138,979 8,247,061 5,138,979
Total 520,824,482 594,549,513 520,824,482 588,475,640
Provision for the staff bonus has been made at the rate of 10% of net profit before tax and bonus for the current fiscal year.

425

Particulars Group Kme
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous year

Academic & examination expenses 708,724 344,619 708,724 344,619
Advertisment & publicity 1,305,625 577,056 1,265,581 577,056
Affiliation and Recognition Fees 482,100 482,100
AGM and annual day expenses 57,427 57,427
AMC Expenses 8,000 1,202,183 8,000 1,202,183
Audit fees (including internal audit fees) 740,600 1,265,200 565,000 1,130,000
Bank Charges 4,239,816 2,350 1,365,403
Business promotion expenses 232,269 232,269
Cargo & Courior 48,470 48,470
Postage & Communication 2,000 2,000
Cash shortage 54,069 14,069
CMC Expenses 2,629,048 2,629,048
Commission
Consultancy charges 13,689,283 11,076,462 13,639,283 11,076,462
Cleaning Expenses 2,182,599 2,182,599
Credit Rating Expenses 708,500 508,500
Electricity expenses 29,802,801 20,341,451 29,802,801 20,841,451
Energy Audit 250,000 250,000
Fees & renewal 11,446,957 6,225,607 10,476,135 5,993,607
Field visit expenses 81,100 81,100
Foreign Exchange Loss 6,882,722 2,299,126 6,882,722 2,299,126
Fuel expenses 5,874,553 4,695,851 5,874,553 4,695,851
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Fine and penalty 1,071,567 1,070,567

Flooring Expenses 853,816 853,816

Gardening expenses 224,712 74,945 224,712 74,945

Guest House Expenses 520,428 520,428

Institution teaching cost 491,550 491,550

Health Camp Expenses 1,626,900 1,626,900

Hostel Management Expenses 16,778,195 8,931,944 16,778,195 8,931,944

Insurance premium 8,895,732 7,172,720 8,790,296 6,976,739

Legal fees 664,520 686,520 664,520 604,520

Loss of Disposal of Fixed Assets 2,208,171 542,692

Meeting fees 8,577 548,250 8,577 548,250

Miscellaneous Expenses 9,519,931 773,808 8,633,260 193,997

Newspaper and Magazine & printing 716,588 716,588

Office supplies expenses 72,195 115,041 16,090 74,275

Packing Materials 42,875

Pantry Expenses -

Patient welfare expenses 15,000 15,000

Poor Patient fund Expenses 1,089,185 165,000

Printing & Stationery Expenses 93,038 287,890

Reception & refreshment 4,976,690 6,783,209 4,976,690 6,783,209

Rental expenses 7,496,868 10,326,385 3,296,868 11,900,385

Repairs & maintenance expenses 34,610,176 19,369,912 33,785,984 19,336,077

Research Grant Expenses 225,000 225,000

Security expenses 27,269,300 23,247,193 27,269,300 23,247,193

Service Outsourcing Expenses 43,503,801 20,657,511 42,447 938 20,609,261

Student ECA & welfare expenses -

TADA 779,820 1,139,132 779,820 1,139,132

Tax Expenses 304,653 249,500

Telephone, fax email, internet etc 2,075,966 2,383,625 2,075,966 2,383,625

Training/seminar expenses 105,000 604,000 105,000 600,000

Transportation & conveyances 1,099,998 1,983,291 1,099,998 1,983,291

Vat Expenses 436,655

Water supply & purification expenses 321,971 1,759,652 321,971 1,756,752

Welfare Expenses 3,115

Total 248,361,207 156,542,381 233,758,589 156,373,369

4.26
(NPR)
Particulars Group Ke
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous year

Depreciation on property and equipment 131,882,360 101,464,004 129,309,384 100,119,431

Depreciation on investment property -

Amortization of intangible assets -

Total 131,882,360 101,464,004 129,309,384 100,119,431

38 aifes ulddeet 20T/ 93



4.27

(NPR)
) Group KMC
Particulars : :
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous year
Interest on borrowings 182,854,202 61,908,987 95,558,321 57,104,610
Bank Charges & Communication 4,239,816 573,334 1,365,403 93,334
Total 182,854,202 61,908,987 95,558,321 57,197,944
428
(NPR)
) Group KMC
Particulars - -
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous year
Current tax expense 22,529,925 7,547,597 16,585,778 7,547,597
Current Year 22,529,925 7,547,597 16,585,778 7,547,597
Adjustments for prior years -
Deferred tax expense 21,030,805 5,903,767 14,646,964 5,173,937
Origination and reversal of temporary 21,030,805 5,903,767 14,646,964 5,173,937
differences
Changes in tax rate
Recognition of previously unrecognized
tax losses
Total income tax expense 43,560,730 13,451,363 31,232,742 12,721,534
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